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President’s Statement and Management

Discussion and Analysis
ITRREREEBHRR DN

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014 together with comparative
figures. These consolidated financial statements
have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$275,757,000,
representing a decrease of HK$248,641,000 or
47.4% from HK$524,398,000 for the year 2013.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to
HK$13,036,000 (2013: profit of HK$647,022,000).
The significant decrease in profit of HK$633,986,000
was primarily attributable to, among other things,
the significant decrease of HK$446,337,000 in fair
value gain of the investment properties and the
decrease of HK$149,552,000 in property sales.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2014 was HK$0.16 (2013: basic earnings per
share of HK$8.15).

XEBEREEERAR(ARTNE
Z2([EEg | )MAZIARRRE
ERR(REIAEE]) B E2014
FIANBILFEZRERERME
HREFRLBHTF - RFAMBHK
ERARARIZEZLZEEEM

2FERE

HE2014F3A31BIEFE A&
8% 1§ & ¥ %8275,757,00078 It
#2013 524,398,0008 T &
248,641,00078 708, 47.4% °

HE2014F3A3MBIEFEE AR
A% A AE1RR 7 413,036,000 %5 7T
(2013 4F : % 7647,022,000 1) ©
i 1 88 2w /) 633,986,000/ T 0 =
ERN(EPRE)REMELATE
I %5 K 8 6 4> 446,337,000 78 7T 0 BA
K ¥ % 8 & 4 149,552,000 75 7T F
g( o

HZE2014FE3A31MBILEEE K
HEARBMAE0.16E L (2013F : B
EAREF|81A5TT)
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FERENEBENBRD @)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of final
dividend of HK$0.10 per share for the year ended 31
March 2014 (the “Final Dividend”) (2013: HK$0.40
per share).

Dividend warrants will be posted on or about 11
September 2014 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on 28 August 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed on Thursday,
28 August 2014 and Friday, 29 August 2014. In
order to qualify for the Final Dividend, all share
transfers documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 27 August 2014.

RARE

EE2REFZREHE2014F3 A 31
BHEFEZARBARESR010E T
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HERABRENER2014F8 A27
B(E2H=Z)TF 48B30 DRI EEARR
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
TEBREREEBHWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW e A

During the year, the Group was principally engaged RFERN AEBTBRBEYEKRE -
in property investments, property development, ¥ ¥%E HENMLOKKERLK &
garment sourcing and export businesses, loan HFEERBEHERE o

financing and investment in securities.

(i) Property Investments

(i) MERE

The Group has investment properties in Hong
Kong, Singapore and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Hong Kong, Singapore and the PRC

Turnover of the Group’s property rental for the
year under review was HK$63,433,000 (2013:
HK$51,246,000), an increase of HK$12,187,000
or 23.8% over the last year mainly due to the
increasing rental rates for retail properties in
Hong Kong as demand for retail properties
continued to be driven by growing tourist and
domestic spending. The Group’s investment
properties comprise mainly residential,
commercial and industrial properties.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s commercial
and residential rental properties in Hong Kong
and Singapore were leased 100% and 67%
respectively. The industrial rental properties
continued to maintain a high occupancy rate of
94%. The property management fee income was
HK$547,000 (2013: HK$506,000).

At the year end date, the Group based on
professional valuations accounted for a
decrease in fair value gain of investment
properties to HK$40,714,000 (2013:
HK$487,051,000).

AEBRNEL MK RPEA
REMBI(TE ] BRERLEDE -

ZE MR R P EH

REBEFAN AEE YxHE
& ¥ %8 563,433,000 7% 7T.(2013
F : 51,246,000 7) + L EFIE
112,187,000/ Tt 5 23.8% @ =
ZHRRERAMEEEREE
HHTEMENTRK  BUEES
TEYERS LARMM - XEH
MREMETEREEIE B
RTEDE -

M2014F3A31H K& B
REBRTNME 2HEREE
HMEMELS 7 5 H100% &
67% TXHEMERERSE S
HEEMY - MEEBEEBNAR
547,000/ 7t(2013 4 : 506,000
BIT) °

RELER REZEME &%
BRENEZAFERIRD
£40,714,000/8 JT(2013% :
487,051,000787T) °
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEBREREEBHWMED @

(ii)

The Group had leased out 3 blocks of factory
premises and partially leased out 4 blocks of
dormitories, with a total gross floor area of
63,891 sg.m. in Huzhou, the PRC. In addition,
further construction works are on hand.

The Group regularly reviews the existing tenant
composition and seeks to enhance its optimum
mix. The Group also continues to replenish its
investment property portfolio by selecting and
locating prospective retail acquisition targets.
The Group believes that a well-balanced
portfolio provides a steady rental income and
a good potential for capital appreciation in the
long run.

Property Development

For the year under review, the total revenue
derived from the property sales of One Victory
was HK$108,262,000 (2013: HK$257,814,000).

A residential project, namely “PAXTON”, at No.
311-313 Prince Edward Road West which offers
about 49 units of 74,285 square feet gross floor
area has been formally launched with grand
opening in July 2014.

Another residential project at No. 301 Prince
Edward Road West has commenced the
demolition works.

With the completion of the acquisitions of
remaining 2 units out of 8 units of a building
at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road, Kowloon
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$49,300,000 in July 2013, the Group
became the sole owner of the whole building
and demolition works of such building were
commenced in June 2014.

(ii)

AEBRHBURMN 2 3EREE M
HRABRBETEEEHHAL -
BEAMIELX63,801F K B
o R FEDNEE—THER
Ti8 e

AEEEHRIRAHEHPAS
THREFFEBES - FAEE
T B E BERSRKAREE
MAEMRERR  NEAERE
WEMLG - AKERR —EY
BRREMELEEREAFRE
ENHSKRAMARKEENE
NIBE-

M=BR

REIBEFER  REBFE1SZY
X HE MR L X% 5108,262,000
BT (2013 4F : 257,814,000 7T) o

AKX FEAEINIEIIHE 2 E
THEE &5 RED49EER -
BEmERT4285FHR - 2R
2014 F7 AEXEEHL TS ©

F—EMRKTEAEIIE 2 F
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R2013F7H » K& B T KK
BURBABNENERLENE
T E145% 165 — 1 12 F81H
BudspT2EEL REA
49,300,000 0 * KEEBEK A
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEENRED @

(iii) Garment Sourcing and Export Businesses

For the year ended 31 March 2014, this
segment recorded a turnover of HK$96,969,000
(2013: HK$211,770,000) representing 54.2%
decrease comparing with 2013. Cost of sales
for the year amounted to HK$86,361,000 (2013:
HK$190,157,000) and the loss of this business
segment was HK$2,077,000 (2013: loss of
HK$1,601,000).

(iv) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
equity securities in Hong Kong. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, this business segment
has recorded a profit of HK$8,564,000 (2013:
HK$15,433,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operation through internally
generated cash flow and bank borrowings. As
at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to HK$1,741,162,000 (2013:
HK$755,567,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as a ratio of total borrowings to total
equity, for the year was 0.51 (2013: 0.24).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has net
current assets of HK$2,454,382,000 (2013:
HK$1,376,697,000). Current ratio was 21.5 (2013:
12.7). The bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2014 was HK$601,139,000 (2013: HK$340,869,000).

(iii) KB R HEORKER

HZE2014F3A31HILFE K
7> 5P 8% 15 & % %8.96,969,000 8 7T
(20134 : 211,770,0007% 7T )
2013 4F 5 2 54.2% ° N F I
Z 5 KK £86,361,000/% T
(20134 : 190,157,0007% 7T ) °
REB D2 E518 52,077,000 5
T0(2013 4 : [E1E#4)1,601,000 %

JT) e
(iv) BERE

AEEFEBE—HEBSLTRA
EAEMEA H 2201453 A 31
BIEFE AXEBI>HHEG &
7 8,564,000% JC(20134F :
15,433,000 7T)

B %5l B
RBEERMBEER

$%EZ;LL@W$F$W%&
mMEBITEEREE S R2014
F3A31H K& lZfE"FM
#1,741,162,000/8 JT(20134F :
755,567,000870) - RAFE © A%
BHEEAGBHE(AIEERHIEEE
EZBENL)E0.51(20134F : 0.24) o

R2014F3A31H A& B 7 &
& & E F B 52,454,382,000% T
(20134 : 1,376,697,0007& 7T )°
B R A215(2013F : 12.7) °
R2014F3A31 8 B17&8 LB
% /5601,139,000/% (20134 :
340,869,00078T) °
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEEBNRED @

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2014,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2014, bank loans amounting to
HK$1,741,162,000 (2013: HK$755,567,000) were
secured by investment properties, properties
held for development for sale; and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy of the Group
having a net book value of HK$3,074,249,000 (2013:
HK$1,939,755,000).

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
Hong Kong dollars, US Dollars, Singapore dollars
and Renminbi. During the year, the Group did
not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“EE”)
(i) Subscription of Rights Shares of EE
During the year, the Group has undertaken to

EE and the underwriter of the subscription of
the rights issues of EE that:

BENE

RER > NRARRAL ETAEE) -
201453 H31H - KA BT
iR AR 1) 48 8045 79,420,403 % -

AEEEE KA

M2014F3A31H R 17 B &
£1,741,162,000/8 JT(20134F :
755,567,000 % 7T ) Jh AN &8 Bl AR )5
{8 4 3,074,249,000 & JT(20134F :
1,939,755,000/87C) 2R EMH » 5
EHERREME  MASREZES
RIER FAE R o

SNE R By 2 L B

AEEZWART BT XL
HIMETRARBRE - RFA - K
SEYERNTBIRKSHMATELNMR
g At EERETMNEmMIAEY
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BB AN
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
TEBREREEBHWE DT

(i)

(@) a total of 537,908,400 rights shares were
allotted and taken up in full on 19 June
2013, the subscription cost amounted to
HK$53,790,840; and

(b) a total of 89,651,395 rights shares were
allotted and taken up in full on 13 December
2013, the subscription cost amounted to
HK$53,790,837.

The Group did not apply any excess rights
shares in the above 2 rights issues. Details of
the rights issues were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 April 2013 and 3
October 2013 respectively.

Deemed Disposal of Interests in EE

Upon the completion of placing of 329,540,000
new EE shares by EE to independent investors
on 24 September 2013, the Group’s interests in
EE was diluted from 43.52% to 36.27% and EE
became an associate of the Group.

(iii) Subscription of a Convertible Note of EE

On 16 January 2014, the Group subscribed 2%
coupon rate convertible note in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 issued by
EE, with the maturity date on 27 March 2019
(“EE Convertible Note”). The EE Convertible
Note can be converted, in an amount of not
less than HK$10,000,000, into new ordinary
shares of EE at any time within a period
of 5 years, following the date of issue at a
conversion price of HK$0.68 per EE share.
Upon the completion of the subscription and
issuance of the EE Convertible Note was taken
place on 27 March 2014, EE ceased to be an
associate of the Group and is now accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Group. Accordingly,

(@) M2013F6H19H & &
BERELEZHEMA L
537,908,400 % it f% i 17 - 72
BARK 7K 553,790,840 78 7T ¢ I

(b) H2013F 12 A 13 H
REEERE L 2EEMNEG L
89,651,395 i fit fix i 15 + R
B Ak AN /553,790,837 /B T ©

Pl 2 )RR AR - AREE I R
A REINMER R o BB R
HEBEORIHENAAT BHEA2013
F4A850 K2013FE10A3H 2
N

(i) B ERAEELZ o

KEBEN2013F9A24BEAK
Bt & 329,540,000 f% 7k & B %
B TFTRIKEEER  AEER
KEBEZEZMAA352%EHER
36.27% * KEBEEKAAEEZ

BEAF -

(ii) FEKEERZ I HRRER

20141 416 H @ K & & R
BHKEEXERTZ2ERATR
E2% N & # %8100,000,000
BLZAUBRKREE FHBEA
2019F3A27TH(I X E B £ 1
BREE]) - kEEXUTHKRE
BAIRETHBESFHEAMT
MEE RABRETRKEEE
10688 T RBREHITDR
10,000,000 8 T AKEEXHE
BRIRD - R2014FE3 A27H®
RRBRBITKEEETRRE
B% XBEBEERLEAAEBRZ
fEnNE UKABREER KB
Ao At KBREEZEE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FERENEEENWR DT @)

EE’s assets, liabilities, cash flows and results
are consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent HK$21,000 (2013:
HK$9,553,000) on the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has capital
commitments of HK$24,356,000 (2013:
HK$5,492,000).

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2014, the gain arising on changes
of fair value of investment properties decreased by
91.6% or HK$446,337,000 to HK$40,714,000.

Finance Costs

Finance costs was HK$14,358,000, increased
by HK$4,084,000 or 39.8% for the year from
HK$10,274,000 in 2013 which was mainly due to
the increase in bank loans.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of
56 employees (2013: 57 employees). Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$47,143,000 for the year under review (2013:
HK$25,628,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practice. The Group has
set out the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

F’ fﬁi//m&%Z EA$E.Z
EMBRERLES

‘“E )lm}
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEENRED @

for the Hong Kong’s employees and has made
contributions to the state-sponsored pension
scheme operated by the PRC government for the
PRC employees. The Group has two share option
schemes to motivate employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

() On 3 April 2014, the EE Convertible Note in
the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 was
converted to 29,411,764 ordinary shares of EE
at a conversion price of HK$0.68 per EE share.
On 18 June 2014, EE announced the conversion
price of the EE Convertible Note has been
adjusted from HK$0.68 per EE share to HK$0.66
per EE share. Further details of the adjustment
of the conversion price are set out in the joint
announcement of the Company and EE dated
18 June 2014.

(i) On 30 April 2014, EE has entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to buy a
property situated at the Ground Floor, No.
15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$236,800,000.
The completion of the sale and purchase is
scheduled to be taken place on or before 29
August 2014 and the EE shareholders’ approval
has been obtained in the special general
meeting of EE held on 18 June 2014.

(iii) On 16 June 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a development
agreement with an independent third party for
joint redevelopment of a building located at
Nos. 301, 301A-C Prince Edward Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong of which the Group is
the registered owner of 9 out of 12 units and
the independent third party is the registered
owner of the remaining 3 units. The aggregate
redevelopment cost is presently estimated to
be approximately HK$460 million. The Group

[ o B R a% AL 2 B 5K & B AR AR & At
SIFR S - AREREMBEBIE
atEl AEBESET -

HEHBRER

(i)

(i1

(i)

M2014F 4838 KN4 8 A
20,000,000 7T Z K &EE ¥ 7] &
REBELBREERKBZEEER
7 0.68 8 TLIE K 12 /529,411,764
BAKBEFEZRBRKG - 12014
F6H18H ' KEBEXALHKE
EXTBRREBR L BERER
KEBEERM0.68BTERAEA
FRAKEEERMN066ETL B
AR BRE E—PHFBIER
RRRI N KFREFEAIR2014F
6 A18 B ZHA N o

R2014F 48300 kFxEEH
BYFE=-FFIY—BEREREER
# ' LA (8236,800,000% Jt Ut
BURBEEINEENHEA155
WH 2% - EEBTN2014F
8 H29HB K 2 AIFER * ME MK
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BRENAS FRGEKEETER
B o

201456 A16H  ARAElZE
BB AR EEYE=Fa] %
RipE - NEEER—BURE
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BT  AREBERAZEF12E
BURPHPIFEEMNELEE
MBIE=H R F3EBELHNE
RET BERAIEKRAKNETY
4 460,000,000/8 70 ° NE B K
BB =7 B T75:25 7t &
ERAREDEIEERE 2 LER
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEEBNRED @

and the independent third party will bear the
cost and share the economic interests in the
joint redevelopment on a 75:25 basis. Details
of the joint redevelopment are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 June
2014.

(iv) Upon the completion of placing of 65,200,000
new EE shares by EE to independent investors
on 18 June 2014, the Group’s interests in EE
was diluted from 42.02% to 35.02%. As such,
the placing was treated as deemed disposal
of the interests in EE by the Group. As at
the date of this report, the Company is also
interested in the 121,212,121 underlying EE
shares, representing approximately 30.98% of
the existing issued share capital of EE. EE is a
subsidiary of the Company.

PROSPECTS

Hong Kong’s economy is expected to record
modest growth supported by low levels of
employment and inflation. We expect the operating
environment for residential property will remain
challenging under the government’s cooling
measures. Escalating construction costs are also
impacting developers’ risk assessments for new
project developments. However, we believe the
residential property market will remain resilient
in view of low mortgage rates, tight supply in the
urban and luxurious areas, as well as domestic
household demand. The government’s plan to boost
land supply will support the property market’s
healthy development in the long run.

The sales revenue of the residential project,
PAXTON, at No. 311-313 Prince Edward Road West
and its related profits are going to be recognized in
year 2014/15.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEENRED @

Increasing sourcing and labour costs, transfer of
customer orders and other operating pressure are
still affecting the garment industry. The Group is
dedicated to maintain good and close relationship
with valuable customers, strengthen its current sales
and marketing strategies to meet the prevailing
trend of the garment industry, and explore new
markets and increase profit margins.

The Group will keep on optimizing the securities
investment portfolio and will insist on a cautious
attitude towards investment strategy in order to
secure stable returns at a minimal risk.

Although the prospects of the global economy
are still full of uncertainties, we are confident that
we are well positioned with the right strategic
moves, harvest of which can be enjoyed by the
shareholders in the coming years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 71, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit Enterprises”). Mr.
Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed
as president and chief executive officer of the
Company.

BRALE
LEREETTEAL

BEE -T15 BARBIZHITE
E IR EETHREHRRER
X URITBRZESXR - BRMAKX
BEXSREERAA(TXBREXE] 2
HITEE  TF - BRITHEIGRE
BRE URTHREZEESEE - BL
ER1965FEERTBKRE 57
1970 F 1973 F ik A E BF K &8
ZRER - BRNERAHEBBIOFL
B BARRAIMKEEXZHNEB
NAIZESE - N2007 5 BELES
ERRRNBEFEREFITIBE -

KRB B LM AR A 2013/14 458k

15




16

Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECERE @)

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 56, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director
and deputy chairman, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for
over 30 years and has extensive experience in
design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of apparel. She serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as
an executive director in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was
appointed as vice president. Ms. Lui is the wife of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group
and substantial shareholder of the Company. She
is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an
executive director of the Company. Ms. Lui is also
the paternal sister-in-law of Mr. Lai Law Kau, a non-
executive director of the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 29, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and
is a member of the Executive Committee since
2010. She is also an executive director, authorised
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham, England
in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in
2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon
is the daughter of Ms. Lui, the vice president of the
Company. She is also the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau,
the non-executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER @

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit Enterprises. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam Smith
University of America in the United States in 1996.
He has more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was
appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice president in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice president to president and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In
2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company
and resigned as president and chief executive
officer.

MR. LAI LAW KAU

Mr. Lai, aged 53, is a non-executive director of
the Company since December 2013. He has been
involved in the textiles industry over 20 years and
has extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. He is also a
non-executive director of Easyknit Enterprises. Mr.
Lai is a paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the vice
president of the Company, and he is also an uncle
of Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECERE @)

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also
a member and chairman of the Audit Committee;
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the United States in
1991 and is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the public
accounting profession and the commercial sector,
especially the travel industry. He has experience in
the preparation for the listing of shares on the Stock
Exchange and worked for a few listed companies.
Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public accountant
under his own name.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EEZEE @

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow
member of the Chartered Management Institute,
England; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student
Society of Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology; and a member of the Regional Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Hospital Authority. He is,
the only Hong Kong Citizen, recently elected as UK
Council member of the Association of International
Accountant, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of
International Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Jong has over 40 years of management experience
in the financial, industrial and property business.
He is currently the director and a shareholder of
East Rise Corporation Limited which is a company
trading in certified non conflict African minerals.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 79, is an independent non-
exeuctive director of the Company since 2008. He
is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service
with the Hong Kong Government for more than 40
years. During 1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong
Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board is committed to achieving high
standards of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2014,
with the exception of the following deviation.

Code Provision A.2.1

Chairman and chief executive should not be
performed by the same individual

The Company does not have separate appointments
for president and chief executive officer. Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim holds both positions.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
president and chief executive officer in the same
person enables the Group to have a stable and
consistent leadership. It also facilitates the planning
and execution of the Company’s strategy and is
hence, for the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
TEERRE @

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, with 3
executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and
3 independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”).
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills
and experience necessary for decision making
and fulfilling its business needs. The participation
of non-executive Directors in the Board bring
independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEREKE @)

The composition of the Board during the year and
up to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

— President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Vice President
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau
(appointed on 1 December 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The biographical details of all Directors are set
out in pages 15 to 19 of this annual report. Among
members of the Board, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Mr. Lai Law Kau
is the paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and the uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Save
as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
TEERRE @

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEREKE @)

All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Z2EEZH(PEBEALE BEEHL
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, + -  BAIi&Z T - #ikBk4d BE
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr. Tsui Bk%E4 - GEE LR+ B BEEER
Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam EZEHE4X 4 )RNFEFREAEL2MEER
Chun, have participated in appropriate continuous RHEZEXERUBEALEFTERE E
professional development to develop and refresh E&H LA - TREEXELENHA
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such BEHEEEXKRESHLE 2 HH
professional development was completed either c@% Wi RERMFEUR
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum, BEHEBEER -

courses and seminars and self-reading which are

relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2013/14
1314 EEREZREEERENHRLR
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
2013 AGM Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
2013
RREEAE §58 ENZEE FMZREE  R#ZES

Number of meetings gE1Y 1 6 2 3 2
Executive Directors yirEs

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tm ~ BI&R 1/1 6/6 - 313 212
Lui Yuk Chu 21k 0N 3/6 - - -
Koon Ho Yan Candy B 0/ 6/6 - - -

Non-executive Directors ~ FH{TEE
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky ki 0/1 6/6 - - -
Lai Law Kau (Note) RER (W) - 1/1 - - -

Independent Non-executive BIXHTES

Directors
Tsui Chun Kong BEA il 5/6 2/2 3/3 2/2
Jong Koon Sang iRE 17 5/6 112 213 112
Hon Tam Chun iER 17 6/6 212 3/3 212

Note: Mr. Lai Law Kau was appointed as non-executive Director on 1 gy #BRIRELEN2013E12 B 1 BES T AIENRTT
December 2013. =)
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
TEERRE @

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs, results and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management
accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with
a view to giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Board:

(@) adopted HKFRS, which conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in all
material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2013/14, the annual and interim results
were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to
provide shareholders with transparent and timely
financial information.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, on the financial
statements are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEREKE @)

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviewed the internal control report. No major issue
has been identified during the course of review.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
TEERRE @

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 24 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31 March
2014.

The principal functions of Audit Committee include:

- to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2013; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2013 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2013 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of
the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$2,501,000 (2013: HK$3,027,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services
amounted to HK$1,632,000 (2013: HK$1,965,000).

Review of 2013/14 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2013/14
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results
for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Jong Koon Sang (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong and Mr. Hon Tam Chun who are INEDs, and
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 3 meetings for the year ended 31
March 2014.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group;

- to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Remuneration Committee (i) reviewed the
remuneration policies and structure for the Directors
and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
recommended the remuneration package of the
newly appointed director during the year to the
Board.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 falls within
the following band:

Remuneration

el

Nil to HK$1,000,000
£ % 1,000,000 % T

HK$25,000,001 to HK$30,000,000
25,000,001 5 7T & 30,000,000 7 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4 members,
including Mr. Hon Tam Chun (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and
Mr. Jong Koon Sang who are INEDs and Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive Director,
held 2 meetings for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;
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— to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieving
board diversity in the Company in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its
corporate governance standard. The Company
recognizes the importance of having a diverse
team of board members, which is an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
The Nomination Committee has been delegated
the authority to review and assess the diversity of
the Board and its skills and experience by way of
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to
the Policy when identifying and selecting suitably
qualified candidates. The Policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; (ii) adopted
the nomination policy; and (iii) assessed and
recommended the suitable candidate of Director to
the Board.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive Committee),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary
of the Company, has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (for the attention of the Company
Secretary).

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary and deposit at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
1218share@easyknit.com.
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Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not less
than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses giving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned under applicable laws and
rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information
will be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;
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— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknit.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views,
and welcomes their questions and concerns raised
in relation to the management and governance of
the Group.

2013 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.

The President and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2013 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2013 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.
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Matters resolved at the 2013 AGM

received the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

declared a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2013

re-election of Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as Directors

re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to repurchase shares of an amount
not exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2013 AGM

approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2013 AGM
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2014 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2014
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2014 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2014 AGM will be set out in
the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that
have occurred since 1 April 2014 to the date of
approval of this report.
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2014 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 58 and 59.

The directors of the Company now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10 per share to
the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 28 August 2014, and the retention of
the remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$21,000 on
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2014 by independent professional
property valuers and the gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, decreased
by 91.6% or HK$446,337,000 to HK$40,714,000.
Details of these are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE

The details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2014 were as follows:

Contributed surplus N
Accumulated profits 25T A

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(President and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy
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Non-executive directors:
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau
(appointed on 1 December 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang

Mr. Hon Tam Chun

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99,
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong
Koon Sang will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company by rotation
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Law 102(B), as
Mr. Lai Law Kau was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 December 2013, Mr. Lai Law Kau
will hold office as a Director until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and subject
to re-election. Mr. Lai Law Kau, being eligible, has
offered himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent
to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has
an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 15 to 19 of this annual report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes to information required to be
disclosed by Directors since the publication of the
Company’s 2013 interim report up to the date of
this report, are set out below.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices
and in consideration of the increasing level of
duties and responsibilities as well as the market
conditions, the remuneration package of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, the executive Director, was reviewed and
revised. Accordingly, the director’s fees of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu was revised from HK$1,236,000 per annum
to HK$1,560,000 per annum with effect from 1 April
2014.

Save as disclosed above, since the publication
date of the Company’s 2013 interim report, there
has been no change in directors’ information that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EEZERE

ESCEEFBIRAFHSIGE
198

B EH#EBIE13.51B(1) Fi2
ZEERHER

B T3 KD E2013F T Bl £ & |
EERARERH BRELMHRAUE
13.51B(1) R ETHBELEEERE
5T o

REBEARAZEEREHR - BERES
RBENEARTR  ATEZEEE
KT 2 HMEBEERF RIBET -
Hitt - B2014F4 A1B8#E > EX%K
LTtz EFEEEHWEA,236,000%
TUEEE] A1,560,000 87T °

B EXFEEES - BALF20135
R B TI% B A - SR
% LT AIZ1351B() 6 AT HE
TEFENED -

EEREAREGHN 2 EE

RAFRERTRFAEMER - K
AR EEAHBARYERTLAR
AEFNETERAMBERFEAE
L BRAH
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

ERBRREAGH 2SR

REARKFEERE - RRAAIHE
(AT B B8 1 B 4 B AR AR S B AT
A BAREILERAH kLo - %
PBCRSCER B E AT (e B J8 2 ) B R T SL A
AR B S E B R RRERSE 2
BREA -

EERFETHAERKRD - HEE
RO RE#ERzER

R2014563A31B ARBIEE K
T ETHA B R R R) 3 H (] 18 5
FE(EEREF LG HRI(TEER

BMERB )FEXVED) WA ~ HEE K
hERETREERER S MHEK

BIEXVEETRESHBAAS AR
AR EEIOAR (BERER
Eﬂ%&%fhw %%MKWF“
KR BER ZEEIRE)  HEER
$®Tfﬁ%&%f{ﬁ%%ﬂfﬁ
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ﬁtmﬁwmﬁm%ﬁZﬁ <FRIZE
MeRpe) R ERIORE I
T
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(@) Interests in the Company (long position) (a)

Number of
ordinary
shares held
Name of Director Capacity BEEER
B4R 5% BRHHE
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a 29,179,480
FEHRLL trust (notes i & ii)
FrEXAA
(BratiRii)
Interest of controlled 17,429,664
corporation
(note iii)
REHEE 2 R
(Hiatiii)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan  Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
Candy (note iv)
BAME L EAXBAMEiv)
Notes: Hist -

(i)

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

With effect from 3 June 2014, The Winterbotham Trust Company
Limited (“Winterbotham Trust”) became the new trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and her family members other than her spouse). Winterbotham
Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited
(“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by Markson International
Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings
is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 60% by
Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. Ivan
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

RARBZER(FR)

Aggregate
number of Approximate
ordinary percentage
shares held of interest
BEEER BE BN
RS Bak
46,609,144 58.69%
29,179,480 36.74%

29,179,480 A% 1 A Magical Profits Limited 2 %
EELRBEBRES - ZARJIH Accumulate
More Profits Limited 2 & # 7% * il Accumulate
More Profits Limited 83 /£ The Magical 2000
Trust(EZZABEEEHREZ T KB EEB U
ZRIEKE )z {57 AHang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited 2 &4 -

B2014F6 3R ERFERETERAF
(MHEHERETAAThe Magical 2000 Trust
(EEZBABREEGRATRBRERBUINZR
IR 8 ) 2 115 5L A ° Winterbotham Holdings
Limited ([Winterbotham Holdings]) } Markson
International Holdings Limited ([Markson])
PR ERETDRIEBT5% F25% 2 # 4 o
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper % 4£ %
Winterbotham Holdings # A 4)99.99% 2 ##% °
ifi Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper 54 &
Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper L4 74 Markson
2 RIHEH 60% K 40% 2 1 o
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(b)

(ii)

(iv)

17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned by Sea Rejoice Limited
which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical
2000 Trust.

Interests in associated corporations (long

(i) 17,429,664 KRN BLFERLAERER - Z
NEDHEEHRLLT2ERE -

(iv) BAMKL(EXRLTHNLRARARRESR)AE

€4 The Magical 2000 Trust A2 — 2517
WAR AR PR o

(b) REEEE 2B (FR)

positions)
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited KEEXEFERILF
Number of  Number of Approximate
ordinary  underlying percentage
shares held shares held of interest
Name of Director Capacity BEEER HEEH Total REHZHHN
EEAH L) RHOEE RO EE At BAL
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu  Beneficiary of 107,581,674 147,058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
FEHRLL a trust
(notes v & vi)
FREXEA
(fiztvRvi)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Beneficiary of 107,581,674 147,058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
Candy a trust
BEAMRE T (note vii)
FEREXEA
(it vii)
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Notes:

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In the 107,581,674 shares, 47,140,104 shares and 60,441,570
shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited
respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Goodco Development Limited was also interested in
147,058,823 underlying shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued
upon the full conversion of the convertible note. Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share
capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu. Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately 36.74%
of the issued share capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui

Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

With effect from 3 June 2014, Winterbotham Trust became the
new trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her
spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings and 25% by Markson respectively. Winterbotham
Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 60% by
Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. Ivan

Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical
2000 Trust.

Mt -

(vi)

(vii)

74107,581,674 % Bk 7 # - 47,140,104 % & (5
% 60,441,570 % A% 9 5 5 bALandmark Profits
Limited R ESZE#REBR A EEELITHEE
wHEE ZERARRDAZEEMBLR - &
SERABRARINMRALRERERS L MET
F 17,2 147,058,823 % 1 B8 i 17 (7] 7§ %) R
BEED ZFERDANERRZBEBETRA
A N21.95% 2 EEMEREEHRLLEE
B - Magical Profits Limited A& 2 & 2 %17
RS H 7 4)36.74% 2 # % 0 H F Accumulate
More Profits Limited 2 & # %5 * M Accumulate
More Profits Limited 8|3 £ % The Magical 2000
Trust(EZHABEEEHRL T RBRERB UM
2R IEK B )2 {E5E AHang Seng Bank Trustee

International Limited 2 &% A -

BE2014566A3H - BF B REFLM AThe
Magical 2000 Trust(E ¥ &5 ABHEE EH X
TRGBEEBUAIMZIREKRE) ZHETA-
Winterbotham Holdings & Markson i ;& 15 18 7
=559 BB 75% 5 25% 2 #E 2% ° Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper 5t 47 Winterbotham
Holdings # /& £199.99% 2 # z © ifi Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper %t 4 K Ivan Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper 5 47 Markson 2 BB 60% &
40% 2 #Em ©

BAMZT(EERTINLRRARAES)RAA
H{EAThe Magical 2000 Trust¥# A2 —H &
7 WRABRRMD PR -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE @

Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake”)

(note viii)

Name of director

EEEH

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
ERERL T

Notes:

Capacity
g4

Beneficial owner
(note ix)

BB A(Hitix)

Interest of spouse
(note ix)

BBt (Matix)

(viii) All the issued ordinary shares in the share capital of Wellmake which

carry the voting rights are held by the Company.

(ix) One non-voting deferred share is held by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu as beneficial

owner. The other one non-voting deferred share is held by her spouse,
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, in which Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is deemed to be

interested in such share by virtue of the SFO.

EEREERAA([EE])

(&t viii)
Percentage
to issued
non-voting
Number of deferred
non-voting shares

deferred of Wellmake
shares held {HEEER(T
BFEERER EREREL
EEROEE 7B Dt

1 100%

fiie

(viii) BERATEHEBTEMFREE L BRI H
ARAFE o

(ix) 1RESEREERNAEZEIRLLIUESEAA
FNEHE S1REREEEERONAERLER
KERERE  REESFRAEKRIEERL LR
BERZB D RAER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.

Br ESCPTiREEE SN - 20145 3 A 31
B ARAEEHETETHRAEHRE
KA RS E AR B EE (E&RE
R HERBIEXVE) KR - B
B hEREETHEREEF LR
{H%meH&%8”4ﬁﬂ§$

AR EREORR (BRES
ﬁﬁ %&%TMWZE SRR

REAGREENERIORE)  HLH
RALR 'TTEaﬁ%%ZiHﬁif1 fJ§E352f%
AFEELMANERIRR » &

BEEETHBME AR R R AT
MERIORE o
EERBRONEER 2ER

ARAHEEMMERARAFEA
B BT LR B BER
RAIEFAEBEA QBRI EAM
EANER IR REEEMERD - DA
P BEEEHERBHA8HEA T 2T
ZRRTAEAEMAREARR Ti&
fA] E At AN B B8 2 BN Bk B 75 3E 55
HEITERATATAFER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,

FERRRROREBRS 2 €

R2014%F3A31H RARQ G KK
SEEROFPHEEREEFLBER
BIEXVERE 2 3 3D BRI /B M)
ARNBEBESCERN AR RIREEK
HIE 5P FE 336 KB E 2 Bt A
MESIARBRZAL(RRBESRHE

or which were recorded in the register required to Z1THAEKRIN AT :
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares held percentage of
(long position) interest
Name of Shareholder Note  Capacity BELER BR8N
RRE® W# & RGHE (F8) Pl
Koon Wing Yee i Interest of spouse 46,609,144 58.69%
BKE REER
Sea Rejoice Limited i &ii  Beneficial owner 17,429,664 21.95%
LEFBERAT EalAA
Magical Profits Limited i &ii Beneficial owner 29,179,480 36.74%
EREAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
REHEE 2 ER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee I, i & iv Trustee 29,179,480 36.74%
International Limited {FFEA
Hang Seng Bank Limited ii & iv Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
BERTARAT XEEE 2
The Hongkong & Shanghai ii & iv Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
Banking Corporation Limited SR
BELBEERTERAR
HSBC Asia Holdings BV ii & v Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
SR
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited iii & iv  Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
R AE
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Number of

ordinary  Approximate

shares held percentage of

(long position) interest

Name of Shareholder Note  Capacity BEEER BBy

g Wi &f RG#E (F8) Pl

HSBC Holdings BV i & iv Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
REHEE R

HSBC Finance (Netherlands) ii & iv Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%
XEtEEz #

HSBC Holdings plc i & iv Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 36.74%

ESHERARLE

REHAE R

Notes:

(i)

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
The remaining 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Hang
Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of
the Company, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of the
Company, is deemed to be interested in the 29,179,480 shares by virtue
of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust.
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed to
be interested in the 46,609,144 shares by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of

Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

fiet

(i)

46,609,144 [3 IR 17 # 1) 17,429,664 IR % 17 44 )%
BRADNERER ZAFAREERRLT2ERE
B o 8 T F929,179,480 % i {5 LA Magical Profits
Limited 2B H# B KA EERES - ZAFTIAH
Accumulate More Profits Limited 2 & %5 M
Accumulate More Profits Limited 8 £ The
Magical 2000 Trust(EZ#mABEARREEE
FHREUTRBERBAMNZRIERE) ZEFEA
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
ZEER - BAMKL(EEARR IO RHRAR
AEE)AAHEEAThe Magical 2000 Trust ¥z
AZ—2Z 50 HiR AR 29,179,480 i I 17 + &
BlER - EXABREREERR LT 2EE - REE
% R ERE 1RO AR A7 46,609,144 IR IR (h R A
g

ARAIESETRLLTHAZLTAERAAR
Magical Profits Limited 2 Z % °

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE @

(i) Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited is
owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited. HSBC
Asia Holdings (UK) Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV which
in turn is wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC Finance
(Netherlands) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc.

(iv)  With effect from 3 June 2014, Winterbotham Trust became the new
trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings and
25% by Markson respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to
approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.
And Markson is owned as to 60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper and 40% by Mr. Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the
Company had not been notified by any persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

(i) Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
REERTERLBAZ2EMBLR - BE L
BESROTERAANREBEERTERAAE
AH6214% 2R - BAELBELERITAR
A 7] HSBC Asia Holdings BV® & # &
fMHSBC Asia Holdings BVJ5HSBC Asia
Holdings (UK) Limited 2z 2 & [ /@A & - HSBC
Asia Holdings (UK) Limited FHSBC Holdings
BV% & # &+ fHSBC Holdings BVEHSBC
Finance (Netherlands) 2&##A ° HSBC Finance
(Netherlands) JSELIE R BR AR 22 EWNB A
7o

vy B2014F6A3HE  BHEF1EHR{E LK AThe
Magical 2000 Trust(E X & ABEE F K X
RBRHEBRBUIMNZREKE) 2HFEEAN
Winterbotham Holdings & Markson # & 5 8 &
E5E D B B 75% N 25% 2 ## %5 ° Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper 7t 4 7 Winterbotham
Holdings # /& #799.99%  # 25 ° T Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper %4 K Ivan Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper 5 & 7 Markson 7 Bl % & 60% K

40% 2 1 o

Br EXXET#EEEE SN - 122014 F 3 A 31

B BEANAL(RRREEHEE

TBABRIN BaEg RN T%ﬁmf

EHENBERAIEXVEE2RE

I IENARARRHEE ﬁﬁﬁ$

N ﬂ&aﬁ‘%&ﬁﬂ%’iﬂﬂﬂ%@% f&BTF
ﬂﬁﬁmm$ﬁﬂhﬁ&@%h
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P EHTAR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

(ii)

The Company

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the shareholders of the Company for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Since the adoption date, the Board, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the Scheme. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, no share option was
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme. Particulars of the
Scheme and details of the movements during
the year in the share options of the Company
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“EE”)

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “EE Scheme”) was adopted and approved
by the shareholders of EE for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board of EE, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in EE subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
EE Scheme. During the year ended 31 March
2014, no share option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the EE
Scheme. Particulars of the EE Scheme and
details of the movements during the year in the
share options of EE are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BREG S

(i)

(ii)

ZANN

R2012F7RA58 KRRl E
B L E — BB R RS
(IZ5t8)) FHHEEMAHR
FF10F - ERHBEHRE EFC
A HEREREERRBERAT
B ATELERE  HAEXZ
SEIM G R ABRIFR - REE
20143 A31HILFERN  HE
W% T8 RO BE IR 1) R1T %
ERL - 7F HFHEKEX
B oo et EI RN FEARRRAER
BEHNFBIANGETHRE
fE39 o

XEBXEEARLAT(XRE
E )

R20126F6 A29H » k&K & #
B R B RN it & — IR AR A
FE(kEEXBRESTE ]
FHRRMNBABHE10F - 8K
MBHER  XEBEXEZCARN
BREMNEERRBKEEER
MATROERE  HEAXKE
BEBRER S MG AR T
R o NE £2014E3 8318 IF
FERN BERBKEEEER
RETEINBERERRTE  ER
Ho 171 - WHEHEIE R K
EEEBREFERNFAKE
EXEREZHNFBEIRNGE
B R R 39 o
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 92% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 61% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 63% of the Group’s turnover and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 28%
of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2014.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the time commitment and responsibilities of
individual directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions.

TEHEEREF

RERN REBEZSKHFEEEAS
B REEA 2% - MxAHERA
EARERERD61% °

REBZSABEPIEAEE 7 B %8
#163%  MERARPAGEAEE Y &
HEE428% ©

HEEE HEIBRALRALT
R (AL NEEFMEE AL AR
RSRE%) R ALEEKHEEHRE
e iR -

BE - HEREERHD

REZ2014F3A31BIEFER
RARSEEMKBEARBERE
HESKBRIARDRMER FHES -

B BUR

AEBREE ZHFMBRIAAREIH
TEERNF XA EREETE
AIE G HI5E

ARBEEZHMOMEFTSREF
MzBgcaik  RENESZH
BEE NG ARR 2 RERRT
ML MERE °
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of its
directors as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March
2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duty of Audit Committee is to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprised of 3 independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2014.

ARAIBHRH—BEBERETE - FR
HEZLRERER KRB - 585
BE NS A MBS RRMITE39 -

BRRERE

ARBZ REARI S B REEDIGE
BIERBRE IR MEARABIR
LB RIRB B R B E R D -

RARBRERE

REARBRAAERCEHEZERK
BRARREEMA RAREAHE
ARARHE2014F3A831BIEFE
BB EMANEREREANLTE

BE -

ERZEE

AR A B R R BT AR A R T AR BB
B4 Fral 2 (X EA ST B E KL
ERZEE ERZEEIEMER
EENEEASENFERBRE LA
WEEHE - BEREZE MBI
FRITESEM °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 20 to 37.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B R

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 157,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BAEEBREEARAFTZERR
(REFREZMH L HRLAE])

Rz BED (A T R[5 ) B BZIIBRF 58 E
157 B ZEREBERAR(TERAR ) REKE
AR (G EREDNERRBRE - LERTTR
RBEREN2014F3 A BZEEMBHRRR - &
BEZALFEZGABa REME2EEER - &
ARGEHRNGEARTRER  URBAREHRK
RMBERHEMBEEEH -

EERGEMBRRARENTL

BENREZREARBELSFMAGRMLERE
IHRERARBTERAGIZREERKEREE
MAFZHEAMBRE GEAECEESERAMA
ZNREELR - NEFRSL SRR M BRR TR
PRFFHERMEB EAHRRA

BEMzEE

B2 EERRER M ERHZFHEAMBERE
EHER  YRRARERREFOGEREE
BORMEH S - BRULIASN - ARERIBE M B Y -
BHUTERABEART RAEFAEMA LR EFRIE
RfE - ZAEREES S AGRM 2 EART
LRETER T - GLERIBREMETERR
& UHEALRTER  UABERTUHIHRENHE
HRESNMFEEMERHRRAL -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B BET R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continueq)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2014
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Gonsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GRRRREMZANER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

Turnover
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties

Gain on deregistration of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries

(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Share of results of associates

Loss on deemed disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value gain on leasehold properties
upon transfer to investment properties

EE S
HE RIRREA A

E7

Hp A

B IDRN

1THRBIX
REMEZ X VEE
Wezs
dHEFEEEMBEARZ
Wrzs
RBIEEEREZAFE
25 (B1R) K
HEARLEREZ
Yo zs

RAELENBLRCEE
DB ERBRE

RELEBERE L
B

R W 2 et
BER A

BRE A& 7
HIRF

AREE R i A

Hitr 2 (Fx) WA
BEGTEEN 7 EE
Rzt ZRE -
MOMEERERE
WE 2 N FERS

Notes

Hat

33

10
34
11

14

12

2014 2013
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
275,757 524,398
(136,302) (317,355)
139,455 207,043
19,155 13,400
(11,320) (31,752)
(69,656) (48,221)
40,714 487,051
- 21,530
(3,359) 8,694
2,346 -
(348,604) -
295,145 -
(333,884) -
308,202 -
(14,358) (10,274)
23,836 647,471
(6,701) (1,723)
17,135 645,748
14,566 12,566
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)
GEBEEREMZERER @

For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
2014 2013
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FET
Items that may be reclassified subsequently [FE{2 A[AEE# 7452
to profit or loss: Bm A -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AfHERE A TE
investments e (3,740) 435
Exchange difference arising on translation &GN & PN BI R
of financial statements of foreign RERER
operations (290) 3,575
Exchange difference released upon N el YN
deregistration of non-wholly owned KRR ELER
subsidiaries - (5,560)
Exchange difference released upon PR A B T8 A B R
deemed disposal of subsidiaries R ZEN =R (10,071) -
Released on disposal of available-for- R E Rt SR A K
sale investments fRBR (2,346) -
Share of investment reserve of associates 7 EH& AR 2
RERE (268) =
Share of translation reserve of associates 7 EEE& AT 2 EH
] (1,310) -
Release of investment reserve AR AL B & A A
upon deemed disposal of associates R fiRlR 21X B 268 =
Release of translation reserve upon iy = Tank=—d Al/NG]|
deemed disposal of associates RF R B 2 BE o 1,310 -
(16,447) (1,550)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for AEE 7 Hi2H (FIx%)
the year I gN (1,881) 11,016
Total comprehensive income for the year ~— AFE 7 2FUA 4% 15,254 656,764
Profit for the year attributable to: DIEREERF] -
— owners of the Company — RRERE 13,036 647,022
— non-controlling interests — JEEERRERS 4,099 (1,274)
17,135 645,748
Total comprehensive income for the year DEREEZEE
attributable to: LONE: I
— owners of the Company — RRARIRE 9,221 656,794
— non-controlling interests — FERiER 6,033 (30)
15,254 656,764
Basic earnings per share FREKREF 16 HK$0.16 HK$8.15
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBARRER
At 31 March 2014
20143/ 31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Available-for-sale investments

Loans receivable

Deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy

Current assets

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for sale

Investments held for trading

Financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit and loss

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Loans receivable

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

FRBEE

Wx - BENRRE

REME
AHHERE

FERE R

WEmE - BB X
Rz
ASREZRER
R

LM

E%&E@%W%E
e

AR E R
BITERER T

mEBEE

B9 REMENTRIEA
ENTHIEA
REMBITEE

mEEEFE

Notes

Hat

18
19
20
21

22

23
24
25
26
27

21
28

29

30

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
37,306 47,802
2,520,390 2,437,501
70,555 35,965
69,221 31,927
1,901 =
9,805 9,709
2,709,178 2,562,904
1,542,764 714,636
19,013 66,445
279,280 287,564
28,622 =
19,248 28,269

— 153

83,805 56,447
601,139 340,869
2,573,871 1,494,383
68,711 56,868
16,176 29,940
34,602 30,878
119,489 117,686
2,454,382 1,376,697
5,163,560 3,939,601
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continuea)
e MR R R @

At 31 March 2014

R20144F3 5318
Notes
Kz
Capital and reserves BEARKFHE
Share capital B 31
Reserves &
Equity attributable to owners of the RAFRRER
Company il
Non-controlling interests Rz
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 30
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 32

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FIET
7,942 7,942
2,720,575 2,743,420
2,728,517 2,751,362
715,748 450,562
3,444,265 3,201,924
1,706,560 724,689
12,735 12,988
1,719,295 737,677
5,163,560 3,939,601

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 157 were #ZH& R 201446 525 B H L RISEREE58%
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 {57 B v/ ABKRE  H NIEEREEE

June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
BRA
Director

EF

KRB B LM AR A 2013/14 483k

Lui Yuk Chu
BEE%
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S AE 3L i
RERERBE X
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE 20143431 AILFEE

At 1 April 2012 N1254518

Change i fair value of available-for- A ERE
sale investments ATEEY

Exchange difference on translation &85 4 BRERH5 2
of financial statements of foreign ~ EZZE
operations

Exchange difference released upon &2 EHE
deregistration of non-wholly owned ~ 2\E]5
subsidiaries BREER

Fair value gain on leashold RmEEEE

properties upon transfer to hEkz
investment properties ATEYE
Profitfor the year TEEER
Total comprehensive (expense) AEE72E(R%)
income for the year WALE

Proceeds received from rights issue  KE—FEHEAFZ
[BHEE
2 ENEAT

of a subsidiary

Deregistration of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries

Deemed disposal of partial interest
in a subsidiary without a loss of
control (note ¢)

Dividends

At 31 March 2013

Change in fair value of available-for- T/ HERE 7
sale investments ATEEY

Exchange difference on translation &85 4 EREFK B2
of financial statements of foreign ~ E3ZE
operations

Exchange difference released upon
deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(note 33)

Released on disposal of available-for-  E T HEF AR R
sale investments

Share of investment reserve of AeBEREZ
associates A

Share of translation reserve of AEBERAZ

R013E3A318

associates EX

Release of investment revaluation ~ BAHEBLATERR 2
reserve upon deemed disposal of ~ REE(EE
associates

Release of translation reserve upon B AHEBRENAEER 2
deemed disposal of associates ~ EREE

Fair value gain on leasehold BRANFEAZRENEN L
properties upon transfer to ATENE
investment properties

Profit for the year TEEER

Total comprehensive (expense) AEE72E(R%)
income for the year WALE

Proceeds received from rights issue B A AR A E5E

of a subsidiary

Deemed disposal a subsidiary BELERBAT K %)
(note 33)

Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries % ANEMBR A H754)
(note 34)

Dividends RE

At 31 March 2014 R2014E3ASIA

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARRER
Investment  Property Non-

Share Share Capital ~ Translation Special Contributed  revaluation revaluation Accumulated controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
Bx  RGEE  &RE  ENRE  GHBE  MARB REEGRR HREGEE  ZhE B8 FERER g%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FAT AT AT 713 713 73 7T 7T FET AT AT AT

(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note )
(Hita) (Wie) (W) (Hia)

7,042 218,330 196,565 29,864 9,800 220,937 15,785 27,698 1533822  2,060.743 168,116 2,428,859
- - - - - - 43 - - 435 - 43
- - - 2,331 - - - - - 2,331 1,244 3575
- - - (5,360) = = = - - (5,560) - (5,560)
- - - - - - - 12,566 - 12,566 - 12,566
- - - - - - - - 647,022 647,022 (1274) 645,748
- - - (3229 - - 435 12,566 647,022 656,794 (30) 656,764
- - - - - - - - (365) (365) 68,361 67,99
- - - - - - - - - - (4,067) (4,067)
- - - (288) - - - - (162345 (162633 218,182 55,549
- - - - - - - - (3177) 8177 - 817
- - - (288) - - - - (165887)  (166,175) 282,476 116,301

7,042 218,330 196,565 26,341 9,800 220,937 16,220 40264 2014957 2,751,362 450562 3,201,924
= = = - - - (3,740 - = (3,740) - (3740)
- - - (2.224) - - - - - (2,224) 1,934 (290)
- - - (10,071) - - - - - (10,071) - (10,071)
- - - - - - (2,346) - - (2,346) - (2,346)
- - = = - - (266) = = (268) = (268)
- - - (1,310 - - - - - (1,310 - (1,310
- - - - - - 268 - - 268 - 268
- - - 1310 - - - - - 1310 - 1310
- - - - - - - 14,566 - 14,566 - 14,566
- - - - - - - - 13,036 13,03 4,099 17,135
- - - (12,295) - - (6,086) 14,566 13,036 9,221 6,033 15,254
- - - - = = = - (298) (298) 69,393 69,095
- - - - - - - (13,925) 13925 - (525988 (525988
- - - - - - - - - - 715,748 715,748
- - - - - - - - (31,768) (31,768) - (31,768)
- - - = - - - (13,925) (18,141) (32,066) 259,153 227,087

7,942 218,330 196,565 14,052 9,800 220,937 10,134 40905 2009852 2728517 715748 3444265

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

Notes:

(@)

(c)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies
now forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share of
the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property, plant
and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from the
transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid lease
payments and property, plant and equipment to investment properties
in prior years and (iii) the transfer to accumulated profits upon deemed
disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit Enterprises”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
placed new shares with net proceeds of HK$55,549,000 to non-
controlling shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises. As a result, the Group’s
equity interests in Easyknit Enterprises were diluted from 72.36% at 1
April 2012 to 43.52% at 31 March 2013. The excess of carrying amount
of non-controlling interests over the net proceeds and the proportionate
share of translation reserve, amounting to HK$162,345,000, is charged
to accumulated profits.

iri

(@)

(b)

(©)

AEE 2 BERRHRERIER 2006 F 10 A BRAHR
FEESE 2R o

AEEFRFBERRARRE HITRARELRR
AR E B (RIEAR RN 19955 L AT 2
SEER)BTRARZBARERRNEE 2 Z
# o

AEE 2 HABBRREARFR2004 58 AHIR
BT REE2H#E -

AEBzMESHRERE()AEEETRONE
ZEBRE - ()P EAEEHE AR 2 BNHEE
REEDE BERSEBEZEGHKE  HEARE
EFEEAEEZALODESIBE QA ZBNEER
ERWE - BERREEERIRE Y EMR R (i)
REBZE2014F3A31BILFE  REALHENRB
NEIREES ZAHEH o

REZE2013F3A31BILFEE - AR kR
EINBAR  kBRBESEBRAF(KEEE])
FRE MMM Tk E B EIERBRFMBHBFE
55,549,000 T ° It - AEBRKEEEZ
PR AMERRPR 201254 A1 8 272.36% #HEE R
2013F3 A31H 2 43.52% » L RERZRE
BB REFBERIRL A S 2 E R EERS
162,345,000 8 7T 251@ FIH 1k o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AN ==
GMEBERER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of premium and other

FREREEH L RERE
ARG R A
EHE
NREER 2 FIBH
MEBA
MEFX
nE - BELRRBINE

ASREZRER

expenses charged on a life insurance
policy

Dividend income from listed investments

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on derecognition of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

s HsH

FATE 2 BB A
BENE 2 AT ARG

BURHR 2 ENBRR
Lz
HE R &R E 2B

investments

Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value
changes of investments held for
trading

Share of results of associates

RIFEERB A VEE
ZABRER ()

NEBMERTEE

Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries B AHENBARZEHE

Loss on deemed disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

RAHERE N EE
KB i 2 ek

LEACHPM KRERTRE

Increase in properties held for development #%{EH &2 R W% N

for sale
Decrease in properties held for sale
Increase in investments held for trading
(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables
Decrease (increase) in bills receivable
Increase in loans receivable
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase (decrease) in bills payable

Cash used in operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

Overseas tax paid

Overseas tax refunded

Dividend received from investments held
for trading

Net cash used in operating activities

RELEMERAD
RIERERERZM

B 5 R H YR (48 0) s

R ER A (52 00)

R E RIE

B 5 RkERAFURE
ENREEMORD)

AREE 28
EREANEH
REFBNEHR
BB
REBBINA
RIEEERBZEHBE

ARRE RS R FE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
17,135 645,748
6,701 1,723
(3,117) (5,246)
14,358 10,274
1,557 1,801
277 93
(9,710) (6,817)
(40,714) (487,051)
- (21,530)
(2,346) -
3,359 (3,216)
(295,145) -
348,604 -
333,884 -
(308,202) -
66,641 135,779
(808,881) (365,629)
47,432 120,312
(11,307) (135,339)
(4,778) 3,039
153 (153)
(64,652) (28,928)
9,213 4,239
1,553 (3,687)
(764,626) (270,367)
(18,689) (5,314)
- 58

(318) (203)

95 63
9,007 6,255
(774,531) (269,508)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HREBERER @

For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
itz FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities REBRBEES BERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B A B 34 490,003 =
Interest received FEWA 2,742 5,123
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HERHHERE 23R
sale investments 2,435 —
Dividend received from available-for-sale At HERE 2 BEUWRE
investments 703 562
Placement of bank deposits with original  #kff:B =187 2| H 2
maturity of more than three months RITIER (130,000) (67,049)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BALERBAR 33 (244,691) =
Acquisition of additional interests in Wi R & A B 2 BIME R
associates (53,442) —
Acquisition of available-for-sale WEEAT B &
investments (24,626) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ~ WEM% - BER&ZEZ
plant and equipment Bftke (1,901) -
Acquisition of investment properties WEEIE Mm% (1,166) (261,626)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEAME - FE & & (21) (9,553)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original ~ $RE#BBE =15 2/~
maturity of more than three months RITER = 67,049
Payment for a life insurance policy ASREZMNK - (9,956)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RE(BR)REEHZHEL FHE 40,036 (275,450)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEES L BERE
Bank borrowings raised EEROTEE 1,017,610 405,910
Proceeds received from rights issue of REWBRRERRND 2B
shares of a subsidiary U8 69,095 67,996
Interest paid BERFE (32,608) (15,025)
Dividends paid BERRE (31,768) (3,177)
Repayment of bank borrowings EREITEE (28,582) (29,122)
Net proceeds from partial disposal of a BEREEN 2 HESHH
subsidiary without a loss of control MBARZMEHEFE - 55,549
Net cash from financing activities RERMERD HEFR 993,747 482,131
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash BH&NKERBLEMCHD ) F5E
equivalents 259,252 (62,827)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#E&KERRE
the year 340,869 403,369
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SMEEXR&E) s /& 1,018 327
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the ~ F&RBLRERFSL -
year, represented by bank balances and EROTEHRERSE
cash 601,139 340,869
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B S SRR M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F8 31 HIFFE
1. GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”), which is the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 40.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Group”) have applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 — 2011 cycle, except for the

amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

—REH

XEBRREBERAR(TARANEARE
SR AXHREERAR - ARDESS
BMAEXFMAERRNR (B ) ERLER -
ARBZEMBERA R T EEE D
RAFRIARER | —ERHEE -

BRABBEREEIRB LA E(HKS] =%
[HKD]) ' MERALXRRZNEE o

ARAN—EREERAA - KAARZER
MEARIEENE 2 EXBEHNME40

&
|
al])
NRERE - AATRENE AR (B A%
NEEREREBEHTAR(EEEE
AR )62 0 T 48 RIS IE L] 2 & B
Fshes R -

RAHBEREET 2BBUG
ERA(EREMBREE

B m

BB R £ BREBEEIERZE
(1BRIA) UHCHESEN
2009 — 20114
BHREBNKRE
BB 7 FE
BB ISR R BE - 2REER
ETRUBRIE) SRARKE
ERNBRELEINFE13YE ATEHNE
BB ERE 1995 EEREFI
(R 2011 FL&ERT)
BB GHERNE 15 Hit2EKAEE Z
CHES) 251
AE(ERHERERE BABGEESZA
ZE®) - RBE20% HEHEK

BRTES  REZRAMERLETZE
ERBREEWGARELEERBAFE
ZHBRBERMBARR R, RNERE PR
KABBBELBREATE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability,
in the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not
made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013
comparative period (see notes 6(c) and 19 for the disclosures
of the current year). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon
the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’.
The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2010 — 2012 cycle’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 — 2013 cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities’

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of acceptable methods of
HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
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Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

financial liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting’

Levies'
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Effective for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phase of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the
new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing
the financial impact of application of HKFRS 9.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

FESHBERE)

ANEEERFEEMHELHEEEETAEFR
SHHEBEMBNSIERAENIM 2B
e ﬁm&ﬁ%%@TE&ﬁ%%@%ﬁm
BEFEGE ERE—BEEREEND
FEE WRFERPTES2EEEEER
BEESBABRERAEE  BIAEENS
ZEHHEEREBERY -  ZEEAUHK®
RRER/IBRENATELBEZEE
BE HEAVBREENFZ2REBERNZ
UBRENRIBZRS  BEEERFE17
FHEBERNZHER SR HF2HATE
FEETHUZEBYIEAFEE  GIEE
e EAF 2R A BB FERE B G E
A 3657 2 FAMEE -

o AP BHREMS - REQXFEHESR
A%%ZT%$EV&?A%ET%%@

EfBZERNE AFEFAEAIEAE
B F2RRFEIGL  FERAMT :

. %1@%A%%%E%\J257%ﬂ
ZHEREERBERERT S 2 HRE
(REAE)

o F2RBABEBEREREFIRGA
ZHEN TEHEKRERBENEEL
BEEE UK

s FIRBARBEEEXRBNAAE
BHE -

BBz EEGFHRAT -

BoEs

FAW%W%&%K R A AR A R
RAEH BB HB®RE - EARAH

EEL/{TI U BIAR A BT R A

o  AHKREURITEEN

. %XE/A&QQ%ZT JEE LSS

s ARNTERNATEEDR -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

el b S T EL AT )

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote
holders;

e  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, income, expenses and cash
flows related to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

nvi\

BB R T @)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F 8431 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from equity investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F 8431 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction. Investment
properties under construction are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Any difference between the fair
value of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. The carrying
amount is arrived at after taking into account the reversal of any
previously recognised accumulated impairment loss to profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment at the date when impairment is reversed
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been had
the impairment not been recognised. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as properties
held for development until such time when they are completed.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are completed properties and are

classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

FESHBERE)

RENE#E)

ERREMEMEL ZBERTBREARL
NERERREVMERAECHD - KR
BMERBERRUARFEAE - ERKRE
MEZDVFERERABZEZMZEBNE
ELPRNESETHER -

i —EYE  BELXBEIAEEERK
LeERBEMAAREMER  RERH
B ZBEBCEEERAVEZENZRE
REMEAKREEANRDEEGRRHHER
i REEZFECEREMAEEER

ZIREBRREREES UPE  BER
RENBOREERZKAE TN BARERE
RREZREAERR - RERZBEHER
BB HRERHEESEERERERME
R

REMENHER  AREVEXKATBE
BRBHLEZSFNETEELRREER
R BURIER - BURREEMESL 2 £
YagBRRHERSHRREFREREE LR
H{EZ Z8E) St ABURHER MR < B
o

BEHERRME

RELEXRMEZIERBEELIZMRA K
A ERFEME < BEEDIR

ARBERNEZRAE  BREEABRRYELZ
RARERKA - FAERE R BREERE
BREVE  BEETKERAL -
BEHENSE

REHENERCEXERVERDEAR
PEE - URARAERFEIREEIR -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy,
trade and other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable,
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F 8431 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of
trade receivable or loan receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income taxes” (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme,
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) government or the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contribution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are
depreciable, they are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation arising from these investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore, the management determined
that the presumption that these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from investment properties
located in the PRC, the management determined that the
presumption that investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

(b) Interests in Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit Enterprises”)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Easyknit Enterprises
is considered as a subsidiary of the Group although the
Group’s shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises decreased
from 72.36% at 1 April 2012 to 43.52% at 31 March
2013. The directors assessed whether or not the Group
has control over Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries
(collectively “EE Group”) based on whether the Group has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of EE
Group unilaterally. In making their judgment, the directors
considered the Group’s dominant voting interest relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders, and any additional facts and circumstances,
including the participation rates of shareholders and voting
patterns in previous shareholders’ meetings and concluded
that the Group did not lose control over EE Group since 18
February 2013 despite its shareholding therein has become
less than 50% and that EE Group qualified as a subsidiary
of the Group under HKFRS 10 for the year ended 31 March
2013. Accordingly, the financial information of EE Group is
consolidated for the whole year ended 31 March 2013.

The directors of the Company have considered all relevant
facts and circumstances, including the Group’s dominant
voting interest relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders, participation rates of
shareholders and voting patterns in previous shareholders’
meetings, related to the Group’s interests in EE Group
during the year ended 31 March 2014 and are of the
opinion that the Group did not have control over EE Group
during the period from 24 September 2013 (the date of
new shares placement by Easyknit Enterprises of which the
Company was not a subscriber which resulted in dilution
of the Group’s shareholding in Easyknit Enterprises from
43.52% to 36.27%) to 27 March 2014 (the date of the
Group’s subscription of convertible note issued by Easyknit
Enterprises which gave potential voting rights and hence
practical ability to the Group). Accordingly the accounting
treatment on deemed disposal of subsidiaries (see note 33)
and deemed acquisition of subsidiaries (see note 34) during
the year ended 31 March 2014 is appropriate.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(c) Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in estimating the expected discounted future
cash flows. If the actual future cash flows are less than the
original estimated cash flows of loans receivable, additional
allowances would be required. No impairment allowance on
loans receivable is made for both years.

(d) Impairment loss on properties held for development for
sale/properties held for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale amounting to HK$1,561,777,000 (2013:
HK$781,081,000) with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed
its net realisable value, as appropriate. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised
in profit or loss when the net realisable value is below
cost. The estimates of net realisable value are based on
the evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
and the amounts of the properties held for development
for sale/properties held for sale are expected to realise or
recover. Actual realised amount may differ from estimates,
resulting in a decrease or an increase in the net realisable
value of the properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale and additional write-down or
additional reversal of impairment loss previously recognised
may be required.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. T ES€ ¥R TREMLH2

94

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(e) Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of the reporting period, the management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs
can be derived from observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
directors of the Company. Information about the valuation
techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of secured bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as raising of bank
borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

6. eMIE
a. SRMITEESR

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BERkERFE(BERES
(including cash and cash equivalents) RERRE)
— Trade and other receivables — B REMEKGIE 14,947 17,827
— Bills receivable — EWZEIE - 153
— Deposit and prepayments for a life - ABREZEREK
insurance policy KN 10,084 9,986
— Loans receivable — EWRER 153,026 88,374
— Bank balances and cash — RITEBRLIAS 601,139 340,869
779,196 457,209
Fair value through profit or loss BATEF AEE
— Investments held for trading — BEEERE 279,280 287,564
— Financial assets designated as at — BATEFAERZ
FVTPL CREE 28,622 -
307,902 287,564
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE
— Available-for-sale investments — AEHERE 70,555 35,965
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost B SHR AR
— Trade and other payables — B REMERNFIR 47,325 40,200
— Secured bank borrowings — BERETEER 1,741,162 755,567
1,788,487 795,767
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, financial
assets designated as at FVTPL, deposit and prepayments
for a life insurance policy, trade and other receivables, bills
receivable, loans receivable, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings
and variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loans receivable and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising
from bank borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank balances, bank borrowings and variable-rate
loans receivable. The analysis was prepared assuming
these balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 10 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. If interest rate had been 10 basis
points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2014 would decrease or increase by
HK$1,189,000 (2013: HK$633,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have sales
denominated in currencies other than their functional
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. All of the Group’s purchases are
denominated in the group entities’ functional currency.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. E@MIE#®
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MBEREEEERBEKE)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) mEEE(E)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) E&EREE
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign RERR - ONESEZ SEE
currency denominated monetary assets at the end of ByEEEEZERMENT
the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =F
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE 15 13 - -
United States dollars 37T
(“USD”) 29,490 88,774 42 93
HKD BT 72 146 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE D

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against RMB and USD for the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities.

As HKD is pegged to USD, the financial impact
on exchange risk is expected to be insignificant.
The directors of the Company also consider that
the financial impact on exchange risk for RMB is
insignificant, and hence no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

AEERINEIIECEREERA
BEEXEAREBRREETILA
RERETZER -

ARERNETTESTHE - BHE
K@ MBTELTERK - AR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles
and the Group has a team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s equity price risk is
concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and these investments are diversified into several
different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 10% (2013:
10%) higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 March
2014 would increase/decrease by HK$23,320,000
(2013: HK$24,012,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of investments held for trading and financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2013:
10%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by HK$7,056,000 (2013:
HK$3,597,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
at 31 March 2014 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to
loans receivable amounting to HK$153,026,000 at 31 March
2014 (2013: HK$88,374,000). The largest borrower of the
Group by itself and together with the other four largest
borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately 10%
and 44% respectively (2013: 17% and 35% respectively)
of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March 2014. As at
31 March 2014, loans receivable under current assets
with carrying amount of nil (2013: HK$9,000,000) are past
due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable
based on historical experience. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is
significantly reduced.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk as
the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 March 2014 of
HK$9,941,000 (2013: HK$15,347,000) was due from a
few customers. At 31 March 2014, all trade receivables
which were not yet past due except for approximately
15% (2013: 6%) of these trade receivables were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period.
The management considers that the credit risk of these
trade receivables is minimal as all are with long business
relationship.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on trade receivables is significantly
reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds
at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations. The management also monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

At 31 March 2014, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$115,178,000 (2013: HK$562,500,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

6. TR T H®)

b.

MHEREEREREEE)

EEmE(E)

AREEERR  AARESHEER
BRI - SARER R B R ERBRE =
MIE1T B LARUIE 52 [ B 2 & 2= Uk [0 368
B - o BEEEEEFHNREIHR
ZEERNESEBE 2 JKRE S5 - AT
RAAKE B CHREBERRE -
At KRRARZEEREAEERESE
WHIBZ EERBREARRD -

Mo ARERBERRAERBES
FERR - ARRAEERR RPER
ZEERBRAR  RABNR ST B
BEREEFIRBTIAREETARE
RIFERZIRIT °

HEELmE

ARBELEAREEMNES  AEEER
PEFEEBRARAWKFZRAERE
FREARASE  EEMT - EEE
TEREEZHRYRELETENRE

Eo
A °

MN2014E3A31H  KREE A K &
FE1TEREEE A£115,178,00078 T
(2013 £ : 562,500,000 7T) ©

TRHEIARBZEBARIHBREN
PIBER - BETTAESRMAENS © &
RIEAREE A B R AR &2 2
ANERABRRTRRSREIT -

KRB B LM AR A 2013/14 483k

101




102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ey S EL RS )

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

. TMIA@®

b. MKEREEREREE#Z)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEELER(E)
Liquidity risk tables B EZ AR
Weighted  On demand
average or Total Carrying
effective less than 3 months 1to5 5t019 undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years  cash flows 31 March
nEw  RREAG #EEE  RSA%A
ERAE  OROEA  3EAEIE 1258 5E19% REAT b i
% HK§'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
% FET FAT FAT T T T
2014 0145
Non-derivative financial ~ #{i£&MAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EZRAMENGE ~ NA TER 29,984 17,341 - - 47,305 41,325
Secured bank borrowings ERARAES 259 19,872 50,695 1,377,005 444,217 1,900,849 1,741,162
49,856 77,036 1,377,005 444,217 1,948,174 1,788,487
2013 213%
Non-derivative financial ~ #{i&&MAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EHREMENTE  NAFEHR 34,989 5211 - - 40,200 40,200
Secured bank borrowings  BEFRGEE 2.21 16,920 30,713 367,668 453,902 869,203 755,567
51,909 35,924 367,668 453,902 909,403 795,767
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are KiE BZBN 2 EE 1%?&2?&??%?’\

included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2013, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to nil
and HK$6,619,000 respectively. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid three years
after the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows will amount to nil (2013: HK$6,933,000).

FEELER 2B REEH D
3fﬂJZH%E§W°E’$2014¢3H31EI
K%20134E3A31H  WERTEFZ
SHRITBAE S B A% K% 6,619,000
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value

0]

(i)

@I Az

c. AY¥E
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () RELEMBEEELNFEIEZAEDT
measured at fair value on a recurring basis THEEZ NFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured AEERIEHMEERNMERAREZAT
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The B TRELERNREENTET
following table gives information about how the fair ZELREEATECEER FRZ
values of these financial assets are determined (in HERM REAZE)
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs
SREE AYE DAFERE FERMTREIESAZE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE7 AT
Available-for-sale investments 70,555 35,965 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
MHEERE ERE RERTHARHE
Investments held for trading 279,280 287,564 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
BIEEERE ERE RERMHAR LB
Financial assets 28,622 — Level 2 The fair value is determined based on the
designated as at FVTPL F28 price that the counterparty financial
BRATEFAERZ institution would pay to redeem the units
CREE NRESRKEe R TREREN
ERREELTE
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in F1R - F2RREIFZZBEBLRER
both years. MEFEEER -
Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) RERBEEMBEEZLAFEFTES S

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

BEERZHMEEZ A FE

CRHEENERAGZATEEYE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F 8431 HIFFE
7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of property sales and garment sales,
rental income from property leasing, interest income from loan
financing and building management fee income during the year.
An analysis of the Group’s turnover is as follows:

Property sales MEHE

Garment sales K EH &

Rental income H2WA

Interest income from loan financing REEFRERNBMA
Building management fee income BFERBRA

X

EXRBEFANEHEERRKHE - KBH
EMERSKA REEFREMNSUAR
BFERBUAZEREBRFRZ B -
AREZEXZEANIT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAET
108,262 257,814
96,969 211,770
63,433 51,246
6,546 3,062
547 506
275,757 524,398

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered or services
provided. This is also the basis of organisation, whereby
the management has chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments include (i)
property investments, (ii) property development, (iii) investment
in securities, (iv) loan financing and (v) garment sourcing and
exporting.

5 ERR

RERDERDBRRFEME - 2BEA
SECTERERREEARTRAR(ER
RERRE]) 2B DEFREMRTH
RGRE 2BE - WTREB RS B
ERENHABAEEER MR ZEZE -

AEBCRERZBABERE  (VDFER
B ()MEER - (EFRE  (VERR
BRWRBREAMKK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

8. 7EER®

(a) THERERER

REEREFRDHAMAK

)

ZEFRR

results by operating and reportable segment: REBNT
For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZ2014 3531 HILEE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing  exporting Eliminations Consolidated
RER
NERE  NEEE BFRE ERRE BOAX i g4
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET 77 77 FET 77 FET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE NEERE
External sales REE 63,980 108,262 - 6,546 96,969 - 275,151
Inter-segment sales’ PEERRHE" 1,321 - - - - (1,321) -
65,301 108,262 - 6,546 96,969 (1,321) 275,757
RESULT 4
Segment result PExE 92,035 19,233 8,564 6,346 (2,077) (4,426) 120,575
Unallocated corporate income &R 2 ATWA 7917
Unallocated corporate BRI DARR
expenses (11,157)
Loss on deemed disposal of  BAHENBATZEE
subsidiaries (348,604)
Share of results of associates  AEBEATERE 295,145
Loss on deemed disposal of ~ EAHEBENT 2 EE
associates (338,884)
Gain from a bargain purchase ~ REBZEREZ NG 308,202
Finance costs BEMA (14,358)
Profit hefore taxation il 23,836

*

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Y BRBREEEURTTSERFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Property Property
investments  development

8. 7EEN®

(a)

[nvestment
in securities

#HRE

THERERREE)
BE2013F3 531 AILFE
Garment
sourcing
Loan and
financing exporting ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
| R
E¥RE  HORK fis# A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT A AT & A AT &
SEGMENT REVENUE NEERE
External sales IREE 51,752 257,814 - 3,062 211,770 = 524,398
Inter-segment sales* PREREEE 2551 = = = = (2,551) =
54,303 257,814 - 3,062 211,710 (2,551) 524,398
RESULT 24
Segment result DEES 530,384 92,882 15,433 2,817 (1,601) (40) 639,875
Unallocated corporate income ~ EAE 2 AGHA 5,335
Unallocated corporate EANZ AFRR
expenses (8,995)
Gain on disposal of HENBRR Ya
subsidiaries 21,530
Finance costs BERA (10,274)
Profit before taxation bl 847,471

*

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned (loss
incurred) by each segment without allocation of certain
interest income, corporate expenses, loss on disposal/
deemed disposal of subsidiaries, loss on deemed disposal
of associates, gain from a bargain purchase, share of
results of associates and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

* DEXBREEENRITT SRR

4

i

o

MRS AT AL AR & ) B 2 @ T R B K
SEZ @ HRAR - DRRERRS
DERBRZEMELEZBR)  BF
RAENEETMEWA - REIFAX - H
E/BRLEMBLARZER RAL
EMENRCERE  RAEMERE WK
@ DIEBERRRERBEKK o A
HFERETERERREZR  FRE
BOERRRTE22ZE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 2E¥ER#=
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERAE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and REERERDBONMAER 2 BEENR
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: BERT
At 31 March 2014 R2014#3531H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
RER
NERE NERR R5RE EXmE HARK &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn & FEr FEr FEn FEn
ASSETS £E
Segment assets NREE 2,529,352 1,566,680 378,462 154,199 6,515 4,635,208
Bank balances and cash ~ B/TE£RES 601,139
Unallocated corporate EARZAREE
assets 46,702
Consolidated assets GREE 5,283,049
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities HEAE 38,170 21,259 35 130 2,663 62,257
Secured bank borrowings  AHERTES 1,741,162
Tax payable EHE 16,176
Deferred tax liabilities EiLhER R 12,735
Unallocated corporate EARZAFAR
liabilities 6,454
Consolidated liabilities GREE 1,838,784
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. 7E&ER @

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) P BEERERE
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3F31H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
\ R
UES¥ VESEE E5RE ERRE OB A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 2,441,009 194,477 323,534 88,891 20,952 3,668,863
Bank balances and cash ~ FTEH A2 340,869
Unallocated corporate assets EAT ¢ A aEE 47,555
Consolidated assets GREE 4,057,287
LIABILITIES f
Segment liabilties NEAR 29,844 14,860 2 125 5,692 50,541
Secured bank borrowings ~ AEEHTES 755,567
Tax payable FEfHE 29,940
Deferred tax liabilities ERHERE 12,988
Unallocated corporate ESR7ARAR
liabilities 6,327
Consolidated liabilities GeAk 855,363
For thg purposes of monitoring segment performances and SEEER A I B oS ML E DR
allocating resources between segments: -
—

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank and cash
balances and assets used jointly by operating and
reportable segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than tax payable, secured bank
borrowings and deferred tax liabilities and liabilities
for which operating and reportable segments are
jointly liable.

RRENRRITRREEHRRLE
REBAHBARERZEEIN -
REECAEERERZROE -

FRENHE - BEARITEERE
EHREENREER 280 EH
REEZAEN  HAEREEDE

ERERERH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. nEERM#
(c) Other segment information (c) HEfttpEER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZ 201443531 HILEE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
RER
NERE E T 25ke LEET HOER AR &a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
2 FEL 4 4 2 2 FEn

Amounts included in the BEREARAEY
measure of segment assets  HEEEHE

or segment resul: LEE:
Capital additions ERRE 3,088 - - - - - 3,088
Depreciation of property, VERET:Va
plant and equipment & 1,119 41 - - 2 - 1,557
Gain arising on changes in ~~ RAMEZATE
fair value of investment 2eha
properties 40,714 - - - - - 40,714
Loss on fair value change of ~ #{FEEHRE
investments held for trading ~ ATEZHER - - 3,359 - - - 3,35
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZ20134 3531 HILFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FER
VESE NRER ErRE S3HE oK AR &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TET TET TET TAT

Amounts included in the BRREAREEY
measure of segment assets  HEEEHEL

or segment result: 28
Capital additions BARE 261,626 9,553 - - - - 211,179
Depreciation of property, plant 9%« EER#EZ

and equipment i 1,116 538 - - 137 10 1,801
Gain arising on changes in ~ KENE AT EE

fair value of investment Bl

properties 487,051 - - - - - 487,051
Gain on fair value change of  H{EEEREY

investments held for trading ~ ATEZHUE - - 8,694 = = = 8,694
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(d) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of
domicile), PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based
on location of its customers and information about the
Group’s non-current assets (excluding available-for-
sale investments, loans receivable and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy), analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located, are as

TEER#)
(d) HELEEH

AGKEEENREE(ER) - 7E
BTN o

RINREP 2B HHE D AKE &
RERREEZLMERREDDMA
SEZHERDEE(TEEIHLER
B RUEFUARASRECEERE
M) ZERIT

follows:
Revenue from Carrying amounts
external customers of non-current assets
RENMREFZEER FRBEEZEREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET &7 FET TE7T
Hong Kong BB 172,646 304,591 2,176,083 2,126,177
PRC H 2,509 4,288 212,113 184,050
Singapore K 3,633 3,749 171,401 175,076
The United States of =
America 81,570 187,307 - —
Europe B 15,399 21,309 - =
Others Efh - 3,154 = =

275,757

524,398 2,559,597 2,485,303

(e) Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

as follows:
Customer A' ZEEA
Customer B? EFB?

() FEXEFZEH

EEREETEERASEBE L EER
B/10% A EZEERENT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
78,335 179,976
36,791 —

Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting.
Revenue from property development.

' RERBREOKKZERSE -
P REMEBRzEXERE-

110 Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBEHRRHMETE®

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHZE 20143 31 HIFFE
9. GAIN ON DEREGISTRATION OF NON-

10.

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group deregistered
certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries which were acquired by
the Group in October 2011 (the “Ceased Subsidiaries”), and
the Group submitted the liquidation accounts of the Ceased
Subsidiaries to the relevant PRC tax bureau, paid all taxes
assessed and obtained approval of the tax bureau to cancel the
tax registration of the Ceased Subsidiaries prior to cancelling the
business registration with the Huzhou Administration for Industry
and Commerce during that year. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has no further obligations in respect of the Ceased
Subsidiaries. As such, all income tax payable and other tax
payable recorded by the Ceased Subsidiaries prior to October
2011 amounting to HK$11,903,000, translation reserve and
non-controlling interests in respect of the Ceased Subsidiaries
amounting to HK$9,627,000 are released upon deregistration of
the Ceased Subsidiaries.

LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF
ASSOCIATES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company subscribed for convertible note
issued by Easyknit Enterprises, a then associate of the Group
in which the Group had 36.27% equity interest. The convertible
note could be converted into shares of Easyknit Enterprises
at any time during the conversion period (being the period
from the date falling on the issue date up to and including the
date falling on the fifth last business day prior to the maturity
date) at an initial conversion price of HK$0.68 (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) per share. Details of the subscriptions are
set out in the circular dated 20 February 2014 issued by the
Company. Since completion of the subscription on 27 March
2014, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, has
the existing rights, including potential voting rights, that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of Easyknit
Enterprises. After considering the potential voting rights arising
from the convertible note, the Company’s shareholding in
Easyknit Enterprises increases from 36.27% to 57.40%. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group obtains
control in Easyknit Enterprises after considering the potential
voting rights arising from the convertible note, and as a result,
Easyknit Enterprises ceases to be an associate of the Group
on 27 March 2014 and has since been accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Company as from that date. The Group’s
interests in Easyknit Enterprises were re-measured based on
the fair value of the shares of Easyknit Enterprises held by
the Group at 27 March 2014. Accordingly, a loss on deemed
disposal of HK$333,884,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2014, which included release
of translation reserve and investment revaluation reserve
amounting to HK$1,310,000 and HK$268,000 respectively.

10.

AHFZEME ARz W

MEZE2013F3 A31 HILEE - NEE T
REER2011F10 A WE 2 ETIHEEEM
BRARIERIEMEBLRR])  REZEEER
HEHMN T IRTREER 2 mEELH
AEERRERINBAGZEERETA
MzHBRER  SNETEHERER
MR ZHENTCEE KR IEHN B AR 2 H %
B -EBERAE ASBREMRDARLR
BRARIZE—FSEM - At R KL
B A REs - BRBRE R IEHIB A RE = 2011
F10 A RIS 2 BT A S FIS R & E A B
FiI6 11,908,000/ 8 T R E KR IEKT B A7) 2 &
R R IR HE RS 9,627,000 8 7T ©

RALERERTZBE

MREZE2014F3A31HIEFEERN AR A
2 E2ENBARRBHKEEERITLZ
HREE  kEBEENAEE—BBEA
T NEEEA36.2T% R AR o Al
ERAIRABRBEANBBETEERESS
BRIFERELZBEHE)ATRNE ARG
0.68 7B T (7] T R W 122 ) BE s W 1K Aok
ZEERGD REFBEIENEAF2014
F2R20BFIE 2 BKA - BRER2014
FIA2THEKIE  ARE BREEZEMN
BAR BECREBEERE#HZBRAER
BYREBENEGKEELEZEBES - &
ERURBREEMER2EERERE - X
RERKEEEZEREM36.27T%ENE
57.40% - ARRIEFERE  KEEAIER
EEMERZBERERE  AEEEEBK
FEEZEG  Ht c KEEER2014F3
A2TBEBTBAAEE, —MHBERRLE
ZBEERAKRA R RN BABRE - A&
BN KEEEZESRIBELAEEN2014F3
Ro21BFEEZKEBEERD Z AFEEH
2 - Bt 8 A & E518 333,884,000 %5
T BEERERFBEREEEGFRES B
/1,310,000 % 7T 2 268,000/ T * EREZE
20143 A31 BILFERNZIERER °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. E R AR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE
— wholly repayable within five years — REFREHEER 21,659 4,785
— not wholly repayable within five years — TERAFEREL(EE 11,946 10,240
33,605 15,025
Less: Amount capitalised in properties & - WS /EE ERE Y
held for development for sale BERfbz &R (19,247) (4,751)
14,358 10,274
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. REEHZF|
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at REEm A B
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 13(a)) E=ME (M 13(a) 6,506 8,613
Other staff costs, including retirement HBITAA  BIERIK
benefits costs @A 40,637 17,015
Total staff costs B T A58 47,143 25,628
Amortisation of premium and other HARASREZRER
expenses charged on a life insurance H {2 2 B dH
policy 277 93
Auditor’s remuneration Z 3B 5 2,501 3,027
Cost of inventories and properties ERABHAIZEE
recognised as expense DFNEYES 133,793 314,751
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREENE
equipment 1,557 1,801
and after crediting to other income: WEREAMBAGTA :
Dividend income from listed investments &E FHiZE ZIREUWA 9,710 6,817
Bank interest income RITFBIA 2,742 5,123
Interest income from deposit and REABRERS RERNKZ
prepayments for a life insurance policy  #EUA 375 123
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments
— salaries and other
benefits
— retirement benefits
schemes
contributions

Total directors’
emoluments

g2he
Efphiz
- kit
il
- RIFRA
GE S

ExMerE

&
AHESHS 2 &N

(a)

Non-executive

HZE2014F3A31BILEEARATE

EMEFBEWT

Independent

B.EZ BETHAZREEZ

Executive director director non-executive director
HiEs FUTES BufnnEs
Kwong Koon Tse

Jimmy Lui Ho Wing Lai Jong Tsui Hon

Cheung Yuk Yan Chiu, Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRF BI% EWR @K@ BBER  HRE  BEE  BEE L]
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT TEn  Fhr  FAr  TEn FEr TEr TEn TET
- - - 185 43 125 125 125 603
1,470 3,861 468 - - - - - 5799
12 69 23 - - - - - 104
1,482 3,930 491 185 43 125 125 125 6,506
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments
(continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for

13.EE - EETHHARREEZ
[ EAC)

(a)

FREEME2ERE)

HZE2013F3A31IBILEEARAAGE

the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: EEeEHBOT ¢
Non-
executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
HiTES FuTES BUkHES
Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui Ho Wing Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Yan Chiu, Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA E1% EWR X HEE BRER 8EE &5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT FAT
Fees 2k - - - 240 120 120 120 600
Other emoluments Ethife
— salaries and other  — H& R E{E7
benefits 1,920 5,352 624 - - - - 7,896
— retirement benefits ~ — RAEREE
schemes #3
contributions 12 76 29 - - - - 17
Total directors’ EElE
emoluments 1,932 5,428 653 240 120 120 120 8,613

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

BEAEENBADE Z BFETHRAE
FENEREZ e BRRIERERTT

BB IR 2 IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. 25  BEETHRARREEZ
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) [0 A D)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EREEEME2EN
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the FR - AEEREGERFATBEMRE
year included two (2013: two) directors. The emoluments of (20134 : MB)ESE - HA=4(2013
the remaining three (2013: three) highest paid individuals, FZR)UFEEZHERFATZH
not being directors, are as follows: c NN
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits Yo REMBF 4,505 2,847
Performance related incentive BRI 2 SRR R
payments 25,000 —
Contribution to retirement benefits R{KEFFHEIHER
schemes 86 88
29,591 2,935
The emoluments of these employees fall within the ZEZREZMENTFTEE :

following bands:

Number of individuals

BEEAY
2014 2013

Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£%1,000,000/5 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7 0= 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$25,000,001 to HK$30,000,000 25,000,001 & 7T £ 30,000,000/5 7T 1 —

3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RRER  AEEREXNHME TES
to the directors and the other three (2013: three) highest REM=%(2013F : =& )R FHA
paid individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining T EBMASEMAREE R 2 12E)
the Group or as compensation for loss in office. In addition, SIERKREBIE 2 HE o I - WS
during both years, no director waived any emoluments. N RBEEREEAHS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHE2014F3731 HIFFZ
14. TAXATION CHARGE 14, HIERAX
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
The charge (credit) comprises: A (G A) B4
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBEMET
Charge for the year REFRE 5,209 16,853
Overprovision for prior years BEFERBEREE (209) (15,345)
5,000 1,508
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions Hh RES| R 2 BIE
Charge for the year AEERX 251 329
Overprovision for prior years BAEFEBRBRE (95) (62)
156 267
5,156 1,775
Deferred taxation (note 32) ERERIE (A 32)
Charge (credit) for the year AEERZ(FTA) 1,545 (52)
6,701 1,723

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a tax provision made
in prior years by a subsidiary, which was deregistered in 2004,
was reversed since the directors of the Company consider the
payment of such tax provision is not probable.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

F BTG RIE AN EE AR BRI
16.5% (2013 5 : 16.5% )t H °

REBZE2013F3A3IBILFEE > t—ER
2004 FH— MM B AR AR BAEFE
RERGBERERL  BARRESZRARER
BE A AT B IE R

BEPEARIMBEAGLERSH AL
EMERE) RECEMSRIAZ EMmEH
NEEzHEBARE2008F1 A1 BEZH
RE25% o

RAAKERNMEFEALEERTEHN - &
PEHETEIREMAEMR -

Hith 8D fR 2 HIRTH IR ADE 2 RITH

EiHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
14. TAXATION CHARGE (continued) 14. HIEF X (#)
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results AEERERXEGERE A2 ENE
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other REBZZHERNOT ¢
comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Profit before taxation B # B13 F) 23,836 647,471
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at  1Z& & M55 5 % 16.5% (2013 4 :
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 16.5%) 7 BIBREX 3,933 106,833
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEMFIF L 2 FHIBFE
tax purposes 115,900 12,362
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ZEEFHWMAZFHIEZZ
purposes (65,873) (97,975)
Tax effect of share of results of DIEBERREELHIBELE
associates (48,699) —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KIERFIEEIE 2 FiIEF 2 3,300 2,068
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABERERTBEEZ
previously not recognised TIBR & (2,340) (6,539)
Overprovision for prior years BAEFERERE (304) (15,407)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries & E it 7l)% 2 & 7 B A A F X
operating in other jurisdictions ERE/ 28 784 381
Taxation charge for the year AREEHIERZ 6,701 1,723
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHE2014F3731 HIFFZ
15. DIVIDENDS 15. R 2
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Dividends recognised as distribution REATERIAREZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid for financial year BIE201363 A1 HILIBEE
ended 31 March 2013 of HK$0.40 per ~ ZEMKEKRE AER0.408 T
share (2013: HK$0.04 per share for (20134 : HZE 201243 A31H
financial year ended 31 March 2012) W BREE AR 0.04 5 T) 31,768 3,177
Dividend proposed REES
Proposed final dividend for financial year #%2014%F3 A31 HIFHHEE
ended 31 March 2014 of HK$0.10 per ~ EFEZ RHREAEMR0.1048 7T
share (2013: HK$0.40 per share for (20134 : HZE2013F3 A31H
financial year ended 31 March 2013) I BFE AFR0.4057T) 7,942 31,768
The final dividend of HK$0.1 per share in respect of the year EBEHE2014E3A31B LEE 72 5K
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$0.40 per share) has been 0.10& T 2 RHIRE B.(20134F : F020.40 %5
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to T EHAATEESREZ VAR ERRERE
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming Ae FERARARBREREZHE o
annual general meeting.
16. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR EREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to AARREFEG 2 GRERBHTIEEAT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: HEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE7T
Earnings for the purpose of basic HERERBFNE < BF|
earnings per share (profit for the (RREIRREEZAREE
year attributable to owners of the pikilD)
Company) 13,036 647,022
2014 2013
Number of shares 2B
Number of shares in issue during the REATEBREARAFIHE 2
year, for the purpose of calculating RERNE ETRHEE
basic earnings per share 79,420,403 79,420,403
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no BRZARA R EEE AL E R ARITE2E
potential ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during FEEBERG - WA25GRETRF -
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBEHRRHMETE®

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

17.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In January 2011, each of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises entered into an employment contract with
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, to act as general manager of each
of the Company and Easyknit Enterprises for a salary of
HK$50,000 per month which is adjusted to HK$150,000
per month with effect from 1 April 2013. The employment
agreements, which constitute connected transactions,
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014
was HK$27,949,000 (2013: HK$1,329,000), inclusive
of performance related incentive payments amounting
to HK$25,000,000 (2013: nil), and was included in the
“compensation of key management personnel” in (d)
below. Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu who is a director of the Company and is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2013:
36.74%) equity interest of the Company at 31 March 2014.
She also holds 21.95% (2013: 21.95%) equity interest of
the Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

During the year, the Group received rental income of
HK$1,248,000 (2013: nil) from a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Easyknit Enterprises when Easyknit Enterprises was an
associate of the Group. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company, are also directors of Easyknit Enterprises.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$238,000 (2013: nil) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company.

17.BEATR S BEXS

(@)

R2011E1 A ARBEKEEES
PIEE KF AL ERGE  LAHK
50,000 B TLEABRAAEE L KEEE
2B - ZERBEEREERS
H20114F2 21 BB EFmEH
EA—HmRERERLS T =EA BN
Bk BE2014F3A31BIEFAE
KEREEAAEBZEEBEZHE A
27,949,000/ JT(20134F : 1,329,000
BIL) BEBENRERR ZEE MK
25,000,000 (20134 : &) & E
BREEAT(BZ[EBEBEABZH
MR- EXBELEAETERLLZE
B BEEURZETAEARRBZZNTAR
20143 A31B B &~ 1A 7]36.74%
(20134 : 36.74% ) fEm 2 EA —H R
EERAXHmA - BTAB—HELE
HAEZERBIEEARA21.95% (2013
F 1 21.95% ) RANHERS o

RAEE  BXREXRAKEBZLD
AR ARBERIKEEXE B2 AN
J& A 871 £ Wt A 1,248,000% (2013
FR) BERXEIREAMZLA
ARFEERTERR - RENBKE
BEXVZE=Z-

NREZE2014F3A31BILFEE A&
BUBRARAEERETEREETHRL
ITREARZREIETHERZESHAL
$£238,000/87C(20134F : &) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

17.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ 17.BEALR S BERS @)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) FEEEASZHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key ESRHMERERNBRFRZHNE
management during the year was as follows: JOlNE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FE7T
Short-term employee benefits Salaries 42 #i{E 8 & 7
and other benefits 5o REMET 36,998 11,626
Contribution to retirement benefit RGBT B
schemes 239 244
37,237 11,870
The remuneration of directors and key executives are EERFETHABR ZME 5 5 B %
determined by the remuneration committee and the ZEERHTESERENATZRER
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the N8 EmEE

performance of individuals and market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBEHRRHMETE®

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.91% - MERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties equipment vehicles in progress Total
Hh - £8
RS ET RE EEIR g
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT AT FET FET
COST KA
At 1 April 2012 201264 318 52,593 2,912 1,075 10,495 67,075
Exchange realignment ~ [EX% A% - 1 2 51 54
Additions NE - 295 405 8,853 9,553
Transferred to investment E&EZ R AN

properties (note 19) (HizE19) (3,031) - - (19,399) (22,430)
At 31 March 2013 1R2013€3 7318 49,562 3,208 1,482 - 54,252
Exchange realignment  [E3{ 5% - 1 5 - 6
Additions e - 21 - - 21
Transferred to investment E&EZ R AN

properties (note 19) (HizE19) (9,743) - - - (9,743)
Deemed disposal of RANMEHRBAR

subsidiaries (note 33) (Hi£33) - (308) (276) = (584)
Deemed acquisition of ~ EANEKBAF

subsidiaries (note 34) (H1i£34) - 106 499 - 605
At 31 March 2014 ®2014%3 431 R 39,819 3,028 1,710 - 44,557
ACCUMULATED Z2itihe

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2012 R2012454 18 1,785 2,673 238 - 4,696
Exchange realignment  [E3{ % - 1 2 - 3
Provided for the year REERE 1,298 122 381 - 1,801
Eliminated upon transfer EBEZZENERME

to investment properties (/% 19)

(note 19) (50) - - - (50)
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31H 3,033 2,79 621 — 6,450
Exchange realignment  [ERGEE - 1 5 - 6
Provided for the year REERE 1,099 94 364 - 1,557

Eliminated upon transfer EEZEZENERME
to investment properties (/3 19)
(note 19) (309) - - - (309)

Deemed disposal of RANERBLR

subsidiaries (note 33) (Hi33) - (180) 273) = (453)
At 31 March 2014 R2014£3F310 3,823 2,711 717 - 7,251
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3 8310 35,996 317 993 - 37,306
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A31H 46,529 412 861 - 47,802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.¥1%  BERZE @

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
according to the following useful lives:

Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or
fifty years, whichever is the shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
The carrying value of leasehold properties shown above
comprises:

Properties situated in Hong Kong under: IAES 2 W

Long lease REAMRA
Medium-term lease REFFR AT

LTREEYE - BERRBRERZTRESN
BUBERERBIAT 2 AHERFHEITE

Gk ok ES Bz FHEATF
NEREEHE
R EER 3ZE104F

B
AE 52104
A EROWEZERERRE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
- 9,450
35,996 37,079
35,996 46,529

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the directors of the
Company decided to transfer certain leasehold properties to
completed investment properties for future leasing purpose.
Hence the directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of these leasehold properties which are determined based
on valuation performed by independent qualified professional
property valuer carried out at the date of transfer, by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties. As
a result, leasehold properties with a fair value of HK$14,500,000
were transferred to completed investment properties upon
change in use of the properties, evidenced by end of owner-
occupation as the Group entered into an operating lease with
an outsider, resulting in an increase in the property revaluation
reserve of HK$11,519,000.

NREZ2013FE3A31BILEE - AR AE
ErTERETHAVEZE SRIRENE
EABELAERR - FTAKRARE AN
EROME 2 AFE - LR BBELAER
HEYERSMITL2ERBEDERERE
ZHBEEREEARETZAEMETE
At RETEALREEVENER S
B AAEEDE—BINRA LRI UELHE
#) A F{E14,500,00078 T 2 L W) ¥ 82
BREE TR EMEESR Y EEGFHEEMN
11,519,000 &L °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBEHRRHMETE®

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.¥1%  BERZE @

(continued)

In March 2013, the directors of the Company decided to
transfer construction in progress to investment properties under
development as the Group was in the process of negotiating
with potential tenants for future leasing of the related properties.
Prior to the transfer, the directors of the Company assessed the
fair value of the construction in progress which is determined
based on valuation performed by independent qualified
professional property valuer carried out at the date of transfer
to investment properties under development by reference to net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential using
the applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties. As a result, construction in progress with
a fair value of HK$20,446,000 was transferred to investment
properties under development upon change in use of the
properties, resulting in an increase in the property revaluation
reserve of HK$1,047,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the director of the
Company decided to transfer certain leasehold properties to
completed investment properties for future leasing purpose.
Hence the directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of these leasehold properties which are determined based
on valuation performed by independent qualified professional
property valuer carried out at the date of transfer, by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties. As
a result, leasehold properties with a fair value of HK$24,000,000
were transferred to completed investment properties upon
change in use of the properties, evidenced by end of owner-
occupation as the Group entered into an operating lease with
an outsider, resulting in an increase in the property revaluation
reserve of HK$14,566,000.

R2013F3 A HRASEIEHET L 2
FHE AAREERTEREEIRESR
BhiREYE EABBEHEBEYE - &
HER AAREEFAHERIRZAT
B W REBYAERBEDER ST
S2ERBBERTS RS2 ABELE R YES
FEEERTBEWRAZHAS WAFERL
EREREARENEARETZHEM
Br- BN NUERERRE AFE
20,446,000 8 T2 FETREHEETERFTE
By BERWESHFHBL 1,047,000

BT

NREZE201453A31BILFE ' AR A=
EATEBEETHAAVEZEE TRIRENE
EABBHERR - FTAKRARIEST(A1
EMROMEZATFE BDREBEBIYEER
BEEMEANSMITL2EREVDERIER
IS BEERNESRARET EENEE -
At RETARLERBZEVERER R
K EAREEEHE-ZIIRALTITULEH
49+ A {E24,000,000 7T 2 TR &) )
BEDTRIREMEER Y EEEHEHHEM
14,566,000 /57T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
EEMK BRP
REME REMHE wmE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET &7 FET
FAIR VALUE N
At 1 April 2012 M2012F4 A1H 1,632,626 - 1,632,626
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 3,252 - 3,252
Additions NE 279,626 - 279,626
Transferred from property, plant EREBEWE - BE kR E
and equipment (see note 18) (BRisE18) 14,500 20,446 34,946
Reclassification E (29,740) 29,740 =
Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss RNIERER 2 AT EE N 487,051 = 487,051
At 31 March 2013 7201343 431 H 2,387,315 50,186 2,437,501
Exchange realignment R (1,832) 678 (1,154)
Additions NE 540 7,934 8,474
Transferred from property, plant EREWE - BE k&
and equipment (see note 18) (217 18) 24,000 - 24,000
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries 184 HE KB A 7
(see note 33) (ZH17733) (567,033) (62,681) (629,714)
Deemed acquisition of 1B AU EEN B R A
subsidiaries (see note 34) (R 17734) 587,553 53,016 640,569
Increase in fair value recognised RIBZHMERZ A FEEL N
in profit or loss 36,831 3,883 40,714
At 31 March 2014 M2014%3 A31H 2,467,374 53,016 2,520,390

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group submitted
a revised development plan to the Zhili Town Government.
Under the revised development plan, certain bare land of the
completed investment properties was being rezoned for the
purpose to construct properties for leasing in future (“Future
Development Land”). Hence the directors of the Company
decided to reclassify the respective portion of bare land
amounting to RMB24,000,000 (equivalent to HK$29,740,000)
from completed investment properties to investment properties
under development. The valuation of the Future Development
Land in the PRC was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar land in similar location.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2013 have been arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried out as at these dates by the following
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group.

REZE2013F3 531 BILFE » REERR
BRI R E T HEERT - BIEZIET %
BitE EXRBREWMEZETEHAEEHN
RENEENEEABRZEB(BEZRE
T ]) e Al RRREFREHE TR
BT 2 HEE IS AR 24,000,000
TL(HHE 129,740,000 T) EF D EE R R
RIREYE - RPBEIZARER L Z(HE
2ERBIHRAENE 2 THEBKRR
BIRETE o

AN B 72201443 431 H & 201343 A 31
BZREDEATEDRATEAEERE
MEBEZBYSEREENEGREMITRZS
HEETHEIEEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M BRRME @)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REW* #)
Name of valuer Location of investment properties
fhERT1T & REWMFEZ it
Knight Frank Petty Limited PRC
RGBT ERAR HE
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited Hong Kong
R EETGEEERA BB
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore
33K
All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under AEEMAERCERYOETRIMAS 2 it
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair AR AR FERDAGE RIEREY
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment TR o
properties.
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EREMEZERERSE
comprises:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Property interests situated in Hong Kong IR EE 2 M
under:
Long lease REIEL 883,300 919,860
Medium-term lease hERTE 4 1,254,120 1,158,550
2,137,420 2,078,410
Property interests situated in the PRC A Bl Z ¥ fEes -
under:
Medium-term lease R ERFA 4 211,569 184,015
Freehold properties situated in Singapore {3 2 %45 171,401 175,076
2,520,390 2,437,501
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ey S EL RS )

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value
at 31 March Fair value
2014 hierarchy

Investment properties
held by the Group

R2014
rEEREZ 3A31H
RENE ZATE AYESR
HK$’000
FET
Commercial units in 1,572,700 Level 3
Hong Kong
BB BFERL ERE

Residential units in
Hong Kong

112,300 Level 3

REBZEEEM ERE

126

Valuation techniques

and key inputs

ERTR
IRGABE

Direct comparison method
— based on market
observable transactions

of similar properties and

adjusted to reflect the

locations and conditions

of the subject property

BRLBE - ERABRYE

2HETBERS 14
ARNRRA BN
ERER

Direct comparison method
— based on market
observable transactions

of similar properties and

adjusted to reflect the

locations and conditions

of the subject property

BRE®E - ERAENE

ZHEUBERS » L
EON TSR ELEdin
ERER

19. REW X &)

TRINMAEEREDEN R FEZEH
(BRI - e ZBENARBARE)
NERBEBAZBEZAIBREREDNRF
EER(F1EFIR)ZATEAE -

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTRE
LDN ¢

1,

Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property etc., which is
ranged from HK$7,143
to HK$419,890 per
square foot
FEMGERTNERE
RUEAREERNER
FINEREER  MEAD
E/BYHRER B
FHERNT7,1485 2
419,8905 T

. Price per square foot,

using market direct
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as age

of building and size of
property etc., which is
ranged from HK$5,725
to HK$14,085 per
square foot
RATSEEAILRRE
BAIEAREM ERIEZ
RMEEN 2 BE  NE
ANEZGFHREER
BIARNES, 7258
£14,085 57T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M BRRME @)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuea)

Investment properties
held by the Group

FEERELZ
REN=

Industrial units in Hong
Kong

REBZ TXEMN

Residential units in
Singapore

REMEZ EEEN

Completed properties in

the PRC

RPEZERRME

Fair value
at 31 March Fair value
2014 hierarchy
R2014
3A31H
ZAYE
HK$’000
FET

NYPESR

452,420 Level 3

E34

171,401 Level 2

Fo

158,553 Level 3

FIM

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

EERHR
EL-L PN ¢4

Direct comparison method
— based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions
of the subject property

BRE®E - ERAENE
LHEUBERS » L
ENUS=R Y E din
ERER

Direct comparison method
— based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties

BENRE - ERRENE
LTEIBERS

Income capitalisation of net
income with provisions
for reversionary income

potential
WAFE 2 WAE RT3
WAE DR

19. REW X »)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EATTER
L PN ¢

1. Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as age
of building and size of
property etc., which is
ranged from HK$2,998
to HK$4,916 per square
foot
RATSERILRRE
BAIEAREM ERIE
RIMBEN 2 BE  NF
ANEZGFHREER
BTARNE2,998 T
2491687

N/A

TER

1. Capitalisation rate,
which is 8.5% per
annum

EA(LE  BFR8.5%

2. Market monthly rental
rate, which is RMB13.9
per square metre
mEEAME  §YAX
AARE13.9T

Sensitivity

gRE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the
fair value

BYHREBRS
LHERR

N/A

MER

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value

EAfL AT ATERE

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value

mEEARERS
AFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group

FEEREL
RENE

Properties under
development in the
PRC

RPEZBRPIE

Fair value
at 31 March

2014
R2014F
3A3A
ZDVE
HK$'000
TET

53,016

Fair value
hierarchy

NYEZER

Level 3

E34

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

EERTR
IRBARE

Residual method - based
on income capitalisation
of net income and
taken into account
the construction
costs that will be
spent to complete the
development

HEE — ERBAFEZ
WABREL AT
BEMEBRERAK

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

at market value

REB LT 2 BAES -
mmE

19. REW X &)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTEE
L DN ¢

1. Capitalisation rate,
which is 8.5% per
annum

BRLE 5F5H85%

2. Market monthly rental
rate, which is RMB13.9
per square metre
mEgARE " YK
AARE13.9T

3. Construction cost,
which is RMB1,074 per
square metre

BERL - BYIAR

Sensitivity

YBE

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value

M58 AREDRS -
NHERR

The higher the construction
costs, the lower the fair
value

BEARARR  DTERE

AR®1,074 T
20. fHHERE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
70,555 35,965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

el b S T EL AT )

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Unsecured amount EE e |
— guaranteed by outside parties and
bearing interest at a fixed rate of
5% (2013: a fixed rate of 5%) per
annum
— bearing interest at a fixed rate
ranging from 5% to 7% (2013: a
fixed rate ranging from 5% to 7%)
per annum
Amount secured by a property and
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 4.5%
per annum
Amount secured by properties and
bearing interest at prime rate

2 EHEHE

AES

Less: Amount due from borrowers
repayable within one year shown
under current assets ]

Amount due from borrowers repayable
after one year shown under non-current
assets

21. EWE

— BIRATERREREELSX
5% (20134 : EEE X :
5%) 2 FFIXRFE

— BETEEE5% £ 7% (20134
EFEEEH5%ZE7%)
LAYV SR E T B
4.5% 2 FHEGFE

NOREEARIERER

B BTIRRBEELZ —FA
BIHEE 2 AR RA

BINIERPEEL —FK
AMERZBEERALE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
28,500 20,100
97,026 53,687
- 5,000
27,500 9,587
153,026 88,374
(83,805) (56,447)
69,221 31,927

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$153,026,000 (2013: HK$79,374,000) that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality based on historical
settlement records. As at 31 March 2014, loans receivable under
current assets with carrying amount of nil (2013: HK$9,000,000)
are past due for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
the credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable
based on historical experience.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency
of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period.

CHERRERBWERZEELERRA
R B KR E 2 FE W E 3 153,026,000 5
J(20134F : 79,374,000 T ) IRBAEED
BABRUEEE X - N2014F3H31H ¢
RREEE Z EWE R mEE I £(2013
% 19,000,000/ 7C) EBRBAEELRE
RREEEELREREEERTESTAN
B RIRER S ERER AN S AME -

ARREFRRBEHRGNEEEEER
ZYREERBTTIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

22.DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A 22, ARREBEZEERFAMNRK

LIFE INSURANCE POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under
the policy, the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder
and the total insured sum is US$10,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$83,808,000). The Company is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$1,283,000 (equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including
a premium charge at inception of the policy amounting to
US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000). The Company can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payment of US$1,283,000
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”). In
addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to eighteenth
policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender charge.
The insurance company will pay the Company an interest of
4.0% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing on the second year, the interest
will become 2% per annum plus a premium determined by the
insurance company.

As at 31 March 2014, the deposit and prepayments for a
life insurance policy amounting to HK$10,084,000 (2013:
HK$9,986,000), with HK$279,000 (2013: HK$HK$277,000) being
included in trade and other receivables (see note 26), were
pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group.

The deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy are
denominated in USD, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company.

MEZE2013F3 531 HILFE » NAFE—
BRB ARG —HASREURRARF
BEEEAMEL - REZRE  ARAAR
mAMRERFE A KL IREE 10,800,000
Z Jt(48 % /283,808,000 JT ) © A 2 A
B % 1 78 1+ 12 £ 1,283,000 T(HH F
9,956,000 7T ) * BLIER (R E R AT
Z1RE 76,9803 T (FH 5 7 597,000/8 7T ) °
ARA A MM B ER IFZRERRIERR
BZREZHSEEKDRS  WHiEERE
5+ 5%1,283,000 3 7T & ATk EL 2 25 51 B K&
HREAREMREEZARASI([REEE])
MEE ° o WRNREE—FZE+NF
BR BEBET2HEEARRAY KRR
BE—F RERAFERENHBZEAESEE
REBAO% T MABFARAR » RE—F
i MEEEAELR2% NAREATETE

{8 o

R2014F3 831 B ASREZIREREN
510,084,000 (2013 4 : 9,986,000 75
g6 ) E #279,0007% 7t(20134F : 277,000
B BEEEE S REMENRGEARR M
26) ' EEATFRITEAER FTAEE KR
TREE 2 -

ABREZERERENFURRREEER
SN2 BWSETTIIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 23.#F{EHEZRREME

FOR SALE

Movements of properties held for development for sale are as
follows:

RIEHERRMEZEZHMT :

HK$°000

T8

At 1 April 2012 201294 A1H 344,256
Additions (note) RNE (i) 365,629
Borrowing costs capitalised ERMEEERAR 4,751
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3 A31H 714,636
Additions NE 808,881
Borrowing costs capitalised ERLEERA 19,247
At 31 March 2014 R201443 A31H 1,542,764

Note: The amount included an addition of HK$61,750,000 arising from
an acquisition of a subsidiary which had property interests. This
transaction is for the purpose of acquiring properties held for
development for sale in the ordinary course of business, and has
been accounted for as a purchase of assets rather than business
combination. On the date of acquisition, assets included deposits
paid for acquisition of properties amounting to HK$12,850,000,
and an amount due to a former shareholder amounting to
HK$12,850,000. Any additional consideration paid was treated as
part of the purchase cost of the properties. Further details of this
transaction are set out in a circular of the Company dated 19 July
2012.

At 31 March 2014, the properties held for development for sale
of HK$1,542,764,000 (2013: HK$714,636,000) included both
properties held for development and under development, and
were included in the Group’s current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as it is expected that the
properties will be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle
for properties development.

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Group performed
impairment assessment on its properties held for development
to assess their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations
made by independent qualified professional property valuers
not connected to the Group. The valuations were arrived at by
using the residual method. As the recoverable amounts of the
properties held for development are higher than their carrying
amounts as at the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment on these
properties is considered necessary.

Wit LheResRERBE-REENEERL
KB 2Rz —IBRE 61,750,000 8 7T © it
RHDBREFELHEERDE KRR
EiEE RUABABEMIRER S G
Ak RUERY EERERBYE
Z B 12 12,850,000 7% 7 o & A A R
Z % #12,850,00078 7T ° RIS 2 #I
REERBANEZLIRARE - kR
HZE—SFBEEHANRARA 201257 A
19 B Z 3K ©

R2014F3A31E ' AEHMELNASE
BYERRE TELEXAHNER  BEF
ERERERTMEZEELEREDE
1,542,764,0007% 7t(20134F : 714,636,000
BILIRGEVBHRRRINERAEBE 2 REE
g o

20143 431 H K20134F3A31H * &
SEE B ERRMELETRENE 22
HAEEERBE BUAEREEMEME
T2 BENTFEET KOS - ZFHE
TRBERSHEESL - BRFIEERRME
ZARESESRERNREHR KHE
AAREERBZENEETERRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

24,

25.

26.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB M2 BAES

at market value BmE

24. HIEEBERE
2014 2013
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
279,280 287,564

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired unlisted bond investments with a financial
institution in Hong Kong. The bond investments contain
embedded derivative, the interest rate of which is determined
with reference to the exchange rate of USD against RMB
and ranges from 0.3% to 4.5% per annum. The embedded
derivative is considered closely related to the respective host
contracts as it would not double the Group’s initial return on
the host contract when comparing to the host contract without
embedded derivative. Therefore it has not been accounted for
separately in the consolidated financial statements.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B ZEWRIE

Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised W1FERNEE 22 F
within 1 year HEREZES

Deposit and prepayments for a life AEREZEZEE R
insurance policy (see note 22) BRR(Z M HE22)

Prepayments SEANE

Interest receivables JE A &

Other receivables H it YR IE

25. B AV EFABRZERMEE

ARERBE-—RERBERAFLTES
RE - ZEFREBEANIITERE  BX
CEENZ2EXZTAARB ZHARRER
KH0.3%E4.5% ° LERBEASITHEER
ZIBRAH ARTENBEARERNTIRA
WzMiaElHm - AEITERBRBEAEAT
BRAOBETRE - AL T EREARBR
RABU AR °

26. B 5 R Hit B TR

2014 2013
HK$7000 HK$°000
FET FET
9,941 15,347
343 6,726

279 277
3,678 3,439
1,486 507
3,521 1,973
19,248 28,269
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26.EZ Kk HMEWRE#

(continued)

The Group allows credit period of up to 20 days to its lessees
and up to 90 days to its other customers. The aged analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date which approximates
revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

0 — 60 days 0—60H

61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H
Over 90 days #1890 H

AEEAFEABAZEERRDE20R K
HpEFEOR - REZKMWSRERZAH
EZRAH BHRWTERNRERR KK
AT

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
9,455 15,219
255 128

231 —
9,941 15,347

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31
March 2014 were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,501,000 (2013: HK$924,000) which were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for allowance. The Group did not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days EiBH1Z60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days EiBH61Z90H
Overdue by over 90 days ERAHERE90 A

EEERREREHNEMBUREALEE
BEXRRARBRBRNBECE S MEME
YFERBRFEEER -

R2014F3A31H ' AEB 2 EFEMK
BiEGTR  BEEREES £1,501,00078 T
(20134 : 924,000/ 0) BEBHER G
RREE AEEVSERRSEHRIFTEEM
AR o

BBSHARREY B 5 EURE 2 B8
M :

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
1,015 796
255 128

231 -
1,501 924

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

BREASBZELESR CRHZESRK
ARG AMWE - WA E 5 EYRIE
RIS HIREHR B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26.E5 R HMEWZIE )

27.

28.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

(continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

usbD

RMB AR

AEBUEREEERNEERUICER
SIEZE S MEMERFRESIMT :

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2013, the bills receivables were aged within 60
days and were denominated in USD.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 5.0%
(2013: 0.001% to 4.6%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group placed time deposits,
amounting to RMB60,300,000 (equivalent to HK$74,693,000)
(2013: RMB66,880,000; equivalent to HK$82,875,000), with a
financial institution in the PRC with original maturity of three
months. The time deposits contain embedded derivative,
the interest rate of which is determined with reference to the
exchange rate of USD against HKD and ranges from 3.3%
to 5.0% (2013: 2.86% to 4.0%) per annum. The embedded
derivative is considered closely related to the host contract as it
would not double the Group’s initial return on the host contract
when comparing to the host contract without embedded
derivative. Therefore it has not been accounted for separately in
the consolidated financial statements and is included in “bank
balances and cash” as at 31 March 2014.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

HKD BT
RMB AR
usD ETT

27.

28.

2014 2013
HK$"000 HK$000
FET FET
5,271 13,622
2 —
BKRE

R2013F3 A31H  BIWERE 2 Rk 560
HAKAETIIE -

BITERRAS

RITERREBEAEEREEZREUAREE
17 15 4 A = §10.001% £5.0% (2013 4 :
0.001% £4.6%) 2 318 A sk 2 3 2 83 2 52 58
RITIFR

R2014F3A31H AEEH—
% BB & M A R #60,300,0007C(5 &
74,693,0007%5 7T ) (2013 4 : A R ¥ 66,880,000
7L £1{882,875,0008 L) 2 =EAEIHZE
HER - THERRENEITEEE  BX2
BEDNSEETLABTZABERFFERH
3.3% £5.0% (20134 : 2.86% £4.0%) °
BRENSITEEB 2864 AR e
EASERERBEN 2 AR REHTER
BWRAREFEANEEREE At Te
PG AT RRABUERE BER 201446
3A3BZIRITEBRIIAE A -

ARBUEREEERNEEE NI EH
EZRITERIREEIINT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
72 146

13 13
14,135 65,013
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BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B S RENHRE
Construction costs payable e R SRR AN
Rental deposits received and rental Bl EER
received in advance Bl e
Deposits received from sale of HEFEEMYZ
residential units BlES
Property management fund payable ERMEERES
Other taxes payable Hfth fE I HE I8
Interest payable FERT R 2
Accruals and other payables TEIR I H o 1< 5RIE

290. B R HBNRIE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
20,079 12,963
7,308 =
20,416 21,359
- 5,230
6,807 6,679
4,454 4,474
1,538 541
8,109 5,622
68,711 56,868

The aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at

REZZEHY  BH5RMRARREHRL

the end of the reporting period is as follows: REDMAT :
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 — 60 days 0 —60H 2,739 6,353
61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H - 1,270
Over 90 days BB 90 H 17,340 5,340
20,079 12,963
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in AEENEBREEEREEB U 2B
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant 5B B 5 REMERFIBEHINNT
group entities are set out below:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
usD e 42 93
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHE2014F3731 HIFFZ
30. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 30. BiEHERITEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable as follows EEREZREERT
(based on the scheduled repayment (REESIRERBZELZ
dates set out in the loan agreements):  EFEEHH) :
— within one year — —FR 34,602 25,602
— between one to two years — —ZEWE 1,071,576 26,071
— between two to five years — —ZhE 107,318 300,163
— more than five years — BBRE 527,666 403,731
1,741,162 755,567
Comprising: a5
Amount due within one year shown BTIRRBEEZ—FA
under current liabilities DI S 34,602 25,602
Amount that are not repayable within TEEREHR—FENEERER
one year from the end of the reporting B 2B EFIET 2 &5
period but containing a repayment on (BTRRREAR)
demand clause (shown under current
liabilities) - 5,276
34,602 30,878
Amount due after one year shown BTRRERBEE L —FE
under non-current liabilities PIEEN &5 1,706,560 724,689
1,741,162 755,567

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carried interest at HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 3.25%, with
effective interest ranging from 1.2% to 3.63% (2013: 1.2%
to 3.5%) per annum. The loans are secured by investment
properties, properties held for development for sale and deposit
and prepayments for a life insurance policy of the Group (see
note 35). The proceeds were used to finance acquisition of
investment properties and development of properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the
reporting period.

R201453A31H  AEBE 2 EHFRT
EETABRBRTREREMI% ZERER
EN3.25% 8 EREMETIA1.2%E
3.63% (20134 : 1.2% £3.5%) - ZEEX
TAREBZREME  HEHEREME
RASREZZe RFANKEAER(RHF
35) - IS ERENEREMERERYE
ZHE -

RBEHR RERTEEONEHEEE
BLNEEREETIIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 20143731 HIFFZ
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. RA
2014 & 2013
HK$°000
FETT
Authorised: JEJE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ 10,000,000,000 & &R E{E 0.1 T2
T 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZTRHE -

79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403 R B EEO0.1 B T2 TR 7,942
There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued KRR ZETE « BBEITRARRKRAERESE
and fully paid share capital in both years. B EES) -

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32, IEAERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERBAFEZERAEZRLERIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BREE)RAEZFHMT
years:
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
MEBIBE B BIEEE #at
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T FET FET
At 1 April 2012 n2012F4 A1 A 931 12,888 (830) 12,989
Exchange realignment b 5 & — 51 — 51
Charge (credit) to profit or  WEZEIGK (GEA)

loss 90 (68) (74) (52)
At 31 March 2013 7120133 A31H 1,021 12,871 (904) 12,988
Exchange realignment bE i A — 177 - 177
Deemed disposal of BEHENBAR

subsidiaries (see note 33) (B H1:#33) — (14,643) — (14,643)
Deemed acquisition of B AU EEN B AR

subsidiaries (see note 34) (ZH7734) - 12,668 - 12,668
Charge (credit) to profit or ~ RIEZHE (GTA)

loss 23 1,595 (73) 1,545
At 31 March 2014 7201443 B 31 A 1,044 12,668 977) 12,735
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 32.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, the above deferred tax liabilities and assets
have been offset.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financing reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE =
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEGE

FERERLIE ()

RENGAMBARRRME - LRELEHIA
BEREECHRHE -

HMBREMS - BIEHIBERZ OWTIT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
12,735 12,988
12,735 12,988

At 31 March 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$101,368,000 (2013: HK$86,714,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$5,922,000 (2013: HK$5,481,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$95,446,000 (2013:
HK$81,233,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams, of which HK$48,800,000 was disposed of as a
result of deemed disposal of subsidiaries in September 2013
and HK$57,199,000 was acquired arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries in March 2014. At 31 March 2014, all of the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R2014F3A31B REEBHE A AR
B E B A101,368,000% 7T(20134 :
86,714,000/8 7t ) © Al AR IK 85 K RHE F o
H i IB B 185,922,00078 JT(20134F ¢
5,481,000 L) EERAEBRERBEE °
MR REBFT R RMTEA @ I ERER
# T 95,446,000 % 7t (2013 4F : 81,233,000
BL)ZHBEGEAREEHRBEE Hh
FH2013F9 A2 R ALEWB AR MEE
48,800,0008 7t & A 2014 £ 3 AU EHK B A
&l i U §% 57,199,000 7T ° 720143 A
318 ' FrAAERTAEEEERHEE -
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BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

33. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES B.RALENBLRF

As at 1 April 2013, the Group had 43.52% equity interest in
the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises. Easyknit
Enterprises and its subsidiaries have been accounted for
as subsidiaries of the Group in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 as
the management of the Company considered that the Group
had control over EE Group. Details of the assessment are set
out in note 4(b). On 24 September 2013, Easyknit Enterprises
completed a placing of new shares of which the Company did
not subscribe and this resulted in the Group’s equity interest in
EE Group being decreased from 43.52% to 36.27%. Based on
an assessment of facts and circumstances, the directors of the
Company considered that the other shareholders had increased
influence to the decision of relevant activities of and voting
power over Easyknit Enterprises, and concluded that the Group
lost its control over EE Group as from 24 September 2013. As
such, EE Group became associates of the Group with effect
from 24 September 2013 and have since been accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 using the equity method of accounting until Easyknit
Enterprises subsequently became a subsidiary of the Company
on 27 March 2014 as detailed in note 34. The fair value of the
equity interest retained in EE Group on the date when control
was lost amounting to HK$46,619,000 is recognised as deemed
cost of acquisition of interests in these associates. The excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associates’
identifiable assets and liabilities over the deemed cost of the
investment amounted to HK$298,671,000 and is included in the
share of results of associates.

R2013F4 A1H  AEBREEXEEED
BITRAZ43.52% AR - ARAEHE
EREAEEBREKEEEEB 2 X
EEERENBRANRAEEEZ20134F3
A1 BEFEZGEMERRBEALEE
2B AR - FFEFBHIRWEA4D) © B
2013F 9 A 248 ' XKEBEXZTKEEFKN
MARRRERBYERAREBNKEEE
EE 7 RAEZRH43.52% [ £ 36.27% ©
REZSERBRAZAME  ARAREEREH
i AR R B IE MYk & B XA E B R Z
ZARREEN REHEAEEE B20134F
AR REEXREZEXEEE 2EH - B
it B2013F9F24HEKEEEEEK
AREEZHEDNA KA NREZ20144F
SABZREMBRER USRS ERER B
EXEEEBREROMNEI4FTE R 2014F3
A2TERBARA ZH B AR « MEAEKE
HE RENKEBEXEERAER AT
146,619,000/8 LR & B H < 1 7)1
HZRABRA - KEE D5 E D)7 a5l
BERABATEFFERBERE 2R AKX
298,671,000 8 T K EBEED(HHZ QA
EER o
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33.DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33.##ALEMNEBLR )

(continued)

140

The major classes of assets and liabilities of EE Group as at the KEEFSENHERRZEAERAREE
date of disposal are as follows: BRlT
HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ERN & 131
Investment properties HEME 629,714
Loans receivable JE W & R 17,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MW 23,508
Investments held for trading FIEEBERE 103,134
Bank deposit with original maturity of more than 88 =18 A 2|87 B 17 E X
three months 130,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIE S 244,691
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EH e IR (28,956)
Bills payable AP ES (1,553)
Tax payable FER IR (6,909)
Secured bank borrowings BEMBITEE (165,335)
Deferred tax liabilities BERBAE (14,643)
Net assets disposed of HEBEFHE 931,282
Net loss on deemed disposal: BHENEZEEFE
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE (931,282)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 525,988
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of AR LB A R IR T B A 7
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified BEFH AELREZR
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control of HMEREFNHEEER
subsidiaries 10,071
Fair value of the equity interest retained in EE RENKBEEEBRAER
Group, based on share price of Easyknit NEE BEXEEENLERH
Enterprises at the date of disposal 2B 46,619
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BEHEHNBRRZER (348,604)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: RELEZRSMLFE
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZRITEBRKE S (244,691)
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. WK B 2 =]

As set out in note 10, upon completion of the Company’s
subscription of convertible note issued by Easyknit Enterprises,
Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries ceased to be
associates of the Company and have been accounted for as
subsidiaries of the Company since 27 March 2014.

The above acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The Group obtained control
over Easyknit Enterprises on 27 March 2014, on which date
the bargain purchase gain is HK$308,202,000. EE Group is

W E10FTEL - RERARRIZRBKEE
ERTZBBREE - 82014F3 27 HiE
KEEBEREMBRARTHEALRRZHE
DR RIARR A 2 HIB A R ©

Pz WEMB AR TAKBEEAR - B
2014F3A27H  AEEMBKEEX 2T
& RE B 2 %2 Utz A 308,202,000
B KEBEEEEFTERERBERHOK

K MERE  BERRENEFREEH

mainly engaged in garment sourcing and exporting, property
investment, loan financing and investment in securities.

RUBE B 20143 A 27 BEAZWES

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed which were

recognised on 27 March 2014, the date of acquisition, are as ENEAEERFWNT :
follows:

2014
HK$’000
T8
Property, plant and equipment I ER 605
Investment properties REMZE 640,569
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 16,139
Loans receivable JE W & R 17,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MW FIR 9,707
Investments held for trading RHIEEERA 86,902
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL BATEFABRZEREE 28,622
Bank balances and cash (note) RITREBRIE S (H12E) 589,458
Trade and other payables B2 REMENRIA (23,296)
Tax payable FEHIIR (6,909)
Secured bank borrowings BEMBBTEE (161,902)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBERE (12,668)

1,184,727

Note: The amount included net proceeds of convertible note of
HK$99,455,000 contributed by the Group.

The net assets shown above do not include the carrying
amount of liability component of convertible note amounting
to HK$54,047,000 and the related deferred tax liabilities of
HK$7,586,000 as the convertible note was held by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company at the time of the acquisition.

Wit ZEeBEEEASEREZTEREEM
18 70E 45 99,455,000 78 7T °

HREWRE B SR RREE S — AR A
ZEEMBRARMES  MENMBRZE
EFETTEEIRAREEZEER AR
[ {8 54,047,000 T R AHBEEF H & &
7,586,00078 JT °

KRB B LM AR A 2013/14 483k

141




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. KB B D B2

142

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of
the receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and
other receivables and loans receivable) approximate to the gross
contractual amounts, the best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows of the receivables which are expected to
be collected. Such acquisition results in a bargain purchase gain
due to the fact that fair value of shares of Easyknit Enterprises
is much less than the net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition.

Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition:

ARBZESRR  WERIFHE(ERERE
BHREMERRARERER) 2 A FESR
HBANESEMRD - DARKE R HEAK
B2 EKRFBRCANRERE 2 REME -
LB EH AR RS AR KEE
KRz AFERERERNKERRZER
BEEFE-

REWE <tk B s

2014
HK$°000
FET
Consideration transferred: REEE
— Fair value of previously held interests of — LR AKEEX36.2T% Em
36.27% in Easyknit Enterprises AYE 61,322
— Subscription of convertible note — RETRREE 99,455
160,777
Plus: Non-controlling interests (63.73%) measured 1/ - JE¥ER&#E %5 (63.73% ) °
at proportionate share of the fair value EXEBEXASNEEFEZ
of identifiable net assets of Easyknit AFEZELPI DGR 2
Enterprises 715,748
Less: Net assets acquired - BB EFE (1,184,727)
Bargain purchase gain (credited to profit or loss) 1 UE K (Bt AE%) (308,202)
Net cash inflow on acquisition: WEZREMAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BElEzRe kEREE 589,458
Less: Cash paid for convertible note M A BRREREZENR S (99,455)
490,003

Revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2014
attributable to EE Group subsequent to the acquisition are
insignificant.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2013, total group
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 would have
been HK$328,944,000 and HK$10,939,000 respectively. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2013, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

PUNEBEEZ2014F3 A31 BILFEXKERE
EEBD Mz EER RN TRERX o

EUWEEN 20134 B1 B =M - B E 20144
SAHLEFEZ SEBEEE RiaHD 5
/5328,944,0007%8 7T ) 10,939,000 7T ° 1
EERERSPERSE > YT RIERNKER
2013F4 A1 FTEREN 2 AEEE
EENES A RBIETERRRES -
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35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group:

35. EE K

RBERR  ARBERTRIERERT
AEEERBRECEENT

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment properties HEME 1,818,000 1,452,000
Properties held for development for sale #H{EHEHEYE 1,246,165 477,769
Deposit and prepayments for a life ABREZEE RBRK
insurance policy 10,084 9,986
3,074,249 1,939,755
TR AR =
36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. KEMANZH
The Group as lessee FEBEREEA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in R ERMERER 2 HIEBAONZK
profit or loss during the year 1,861 1,860

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBERR  ARBEREAAHBELEHEL
ZAREEAERONFREHROT

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 398 1,872
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZERFN(BEEEMSF) 93 300
491 2,172

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters.
Leases are negotiated for terms of one to two years.

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

REBONREAREREETHRAZERE
ZEMCENES - BOBESTE—ZMF -

BREAKBEI L 2BY  BONKEREE
R BRI KRR R
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36.

(continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned RENRR MERSBA
during the year

Less: Outgoings i 2

Net rental income e WA HE

REHNZTH 2

AEBERAHBAA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
63,433 51,246
(2,509) (2,604)
60,924 48,642

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RBERR  ARBEEBFET LA FARKR
EROMF

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year — KX 63,966 54,520
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFERFEN(BREEEME) 52,822 86,024
Over five years BiBRE 3,433 —
120,221 140,544

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the rental payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed
tenants for terms of one to seven years (2013: one to five years).

At 31 March 2014, operating lease rentals committed by close

relatives of certain directors of the Company amounted to
HK$1,518,000 (2013: nil) which fall due as follows:

Within one year —ERQ

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFEAF(BREEMTE)

BEAEETY2HY  BONFAETE R
VEVSARESNRLHE - HEMEZA
NEP—Z=LE(2013F : —F2hHE) o

R2014F3A31 8  ARAETEEZHM
P 7 R EREMRE 51,518,000 T
(20134 : &) Z BRI T

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
888 =

630 =
1,518 =
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37.

38.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment
— investment properties

BBz ERRX

— BREMF

- W% BERRE

37. EREIE

BETAME R RN ER A M B K P

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
10,045 1,399
14,311 4,093
24,356 5,492

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group had defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Retirement Scheme”) for its employees and the assets of the
Retirement Scheme are held under provident funds managed
by independent trustees. With effect from 1 December 2000,
the Retirement Scheme has become a “Top Up” scheme to
supplement the minimum benefit under the mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,000, which was revised to HK$1,250 with effect
from 1 June 2012 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to
a maximum of HK$1,250 (the “mandatory contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been
dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$561,000 (2013: HK$743,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the total amount of forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years was insignificant.

38. RIKEA|=T &

AEEREEE AT HIEARBFGEI(ER
Retdl]) » RIRFTEIZEER—BUEIEA
ERESER - 12000512 A1 B BIR
SEIRE AR AT AARERNE
BIAGERE I MR ERFZ 2841
NESFE([BESE]) -

RREEFET  EEEREBAFHFSHK
5% &% 51,0008 k& EEE H2012
FoA1BRAEAE1,2508T  EELAIE
BELEMT - BEEBAERAEREEZ
FRGETEMIE% X HZA1,25078 T -
(Mg FIERTR ) - R B 65BN - LT
FREBRKTAENE  IEZHEERE
HRZ100% °

RAEBEZHBRRZEEATEBNRILZ
BEREBRAKESENE - HIEBDRAEH
SETAEDOLAMERKREHEHT - AREZ
BEERHERSFHELAMREZHK

NEBZE20145E3 31 HIEFERIBR R
2 B 42 %8 %561,00075 7L (2013 4F ¢
743,000 7T) °

PR HAR + ATk P (R R R O 4 R At
KRBT BBLTERK
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 39. B R HEGT &

The Company
The 2002 EI Scheme

On 18 February 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the 2002 El Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their absolute discretion grant options to any employee(s)
including any executive or non-executive directors of the
Group or associated companies, controlling shareholders,
business partners, joint venture partners, contractors, agents,
representatives, suppliers, customers, landlords, tenants,
advisers or consultants of the Group (including any company
controlled by any of the above persons) to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The 2002 El Scheme, which is valid for a period
of 10 years, expired on 18 February 2012.

No share options were granted under the 2002 El Scheme or
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The 2012 El Scheme

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved at the shareholders of the Company.
Under the 2012 ElI Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their absolute discretion grant options to all directors
(including any executive and non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme is valid for 10
years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of 2012 ElI Scheme. The overall limit on the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El Scheme and
other share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

¥ /N
2002 F XS BRI IR T2

720022 A18H » AR fE—TAR
PEkERT 21 ([ 2002 F 7k & BIRR B AR g T2l |) -
RIE2002 F ok & BIEERERE - RNAF
EENRYMEBERNEMEEBEAEE I
BRRZEMRITHIENTES A5E 2
TR C EBBH SECERH A8
HREA BERER HER - BF ¥
T P FWASRERE(REAER LA
TATES 2 EA AR R HBRE - UREAR
NElZRG - M10FHER—E £ 2002
FoxEBBRERES - K2012F2 A18H
BRAE o

REZ2013F3A31B LFEHER B
2002 7k  BIBR BB AR R 5T 8 2 BE AR R JE % ) Bk
17fd o

2012 F X E BB R 1EqT &

RRAAN201247 A5H B AR A IRER AL &
— BB 21 ([2012 &k 2 B B B A A
FTEl]) o IRIE2012 FoxEBIBRIERAEETE -
RRBEERBEBIBRAMAEZES(BEEM
WITRIERTES) AEBZ2HEE ME
MR ERE - URBARARZEMD 2012
FoxkE BB BIBR IE LA E 4 5 T 8
gk BRIH2012F7 A5 HET10FER
—E4EM -

2012 F KB BB BBEH B R EHHTAE
B2EERNRAADARLRG 2 EEMN
SIYYNVETEEE T TS

AR2012 F kBB ERETERERLZ
BRETUTESZTZE2RHEE © B
BBAR 2012 F k& BHER B2 A
Hz BTN 10% © AJ 74 2012 F ok EBER
BRETE AR R EMBERENEMEE
BREAEMRITEZERETATERETZ
BMEE BB LR TEBRaNRE T
&7 30% ©
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. R ESTElw)

The Company (continued)
The 2012 EI Scheme (continued)

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of
the Company abstaining from voting.

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of the limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 EE
Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the Company
and shall end on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share
options, the Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s),
if any, for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised in whole or in part, and (b) specify the minimum
performance target(s), if any, which must be achieved before the
share options can be exercised in whole or in past. The amount
payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of share options is
HK$1.

QR (#F)
2012 F KB EIER T B (%)

AAARERMES FETRAERTER
RIEMEESEAZHBEARN 2 BRBR
& HARGSARABULIFNTESIE -
fHAARNBEERRIBIIFRTESTHE
AREREEZCHEARBEMNBRE 88
RE1REAREA  AZBEALERE RS
RO B BREETERD BT RSHT
2B - BRRAREETRN0.1%
ERERGRARL ARNBR A8 ARE
KIS A RRBRD BT ENE 2R #E
8 115,000,000 %8 ;T - L FE -SSR HE
BREARGERR HE  MARBZBEA
TRERRGHERSE -

R EXFR RS - EEM1208 A HE
A AEEARARRE RFGEE 2 BiE(R
RETERARTEZ BRI BTERDE
TREETZRNEE  THBBARAE
BIBRM 1% - EAE-SREBAZ LR
BREARGRRAE  MARAREBE
ARERABHERE -

BREZTESRRARTNESSRE  BE
TENREEREE R 10F 2HER -
RELBREE  ARRLA@Q)TEAER
B2HRMBATELARHE 2 KEHR(W
B) RO)ERABBEZHRBAITE LA
WBRTRZ RERRER - XBOABRRE
MELBREZ BOXMN1ET -
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. R fESTElw)

The Company (continued)
The 2012 EI Scheme (continued)

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 El Scheme or
exercised during both years.

Easyknit Enterprises
The 2002 EE Scheme

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 EE Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises.
Under the terms of the 2002 EE Scheme, the board of directors
of Easyknit Enterprises may, at its absolute discretion, offer
options to any employee (full-time and part-time), director,
supplier, consultant or advisor of any member of the EE Group
to subscribe for shares in Easyknit Enterprises subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. The 2002 EE Scheme,
which is valid for a period of 10 years, was terminated on 22
June 2012.

No share options were granted under the 2002 EE Scheme or
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The 2012 EE Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012
EE Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit
Enterprises. Under the terms of the 2012 EE Scheme, the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises may, at its absolute
discretion, offer options to any full-time employee, director or
consultant of any member of the EE Group (including associated
companies) to subscribe for shares in Easyknit Enterprises
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The 2012
EE Scheme is valid during the period of 10 years commencing
29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

QR (#F)
2012 F KB EIER L B (%)

2012 F k& BN BB AR M AT &l 2 (4 B B AR
BZRBETELR)RELN B HREE AT
ZFBERERHH AR B REE R T2 W
mE: (NBRZHNAGAEELER - PR
R 2B BRERTHAD BB B AT
Z BB - AR (i) AR RRNREL B
HrEmEARESEAE) -

PP fE 5 AL AR 2012 F ok B B R BB
AR B R MR TE -

KEEE
2002 F R EEFIERE B

R2002F6A6H ' KEEERFIE—
BB R E([2002F 5k & B £ 0B Rt
2 1) - BRI 2002 Fox & B EERETE 2 15
FoKERBEEZONRERHBEE R
BAHEZ R RGERKEEEEE TR
KERRIZEMEE (2R EE) &=
HEs BRI EZAARKAIRBEKEEE
Rz BRE MOFEHBAR—BEER 2
2002 FkEEEBEREE - 1 2012F6 A
22 B#RIE ©

KRB E20135F3A31H L FEHERE
2002 FAFEF 2 BIEER T KITE -

2012 F RS E#BREZ

72012F6 A29H » KEEEM R A —
B BRRER 2 (2012 Fk & B £ BERET
2]) - BIFE2012F KEEEBRET S 2 15
o KEREEETCAREBUREE B
B ERE 2GR RIGHERKEEEE
BEEMKEAR(BREHBENE) 2 EMER
B8 EEgBERRLTRBAEEERD
ZBIRIE - 2012 ok HE EEERERT 2B 3E
PAE A 5 E 87T - ZRIA2012F 6 A
20 HBFT 10 F AR —E A/ -
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. R ESTElw)

Easyknit Enterprises (continued)
The 2012 EE Scheme (continued)

The purposes of the 2012 EE Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of Easyknit
Enterprises and its shares for the benefit of Easyknit Enterprises
and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2012 EE Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of Easyknit
Enterprises) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 EE Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of the
2012 EE Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of Easyknit Enterprises in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of Easyknit Enterprises with such
grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 EE
Scheme is determined by the board of directors of Easyknit
Enterprises and shall end on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant
of the share options, Easyknit Enterprises must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b) specify the
minimum performance target(s), if any, which must be achieved
before the share options can be exercised in whole or in past.
The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of share
options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 EE Scheme may be determined by the board of directors
of Easyknit Enterprises in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of Easyknit Enterprises’ shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of Easyknit Enterprises’ shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Easyknit Enterprises’ shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EE Scheme or
exercised during both years.

XEBEE(E)
2012 F KEBFIER BB (%)

012F X ZREXBREFAEEZBTAE
BE2EEFNRAKBEERARND ZEE
UHEKBEXENERR ZEBME -

RIBE2012F X HEXBRE BRI BERTL
RRBHHE MF(RREKRER ZEME
o fE B AT 811 T 81T 2 R n & 6 8
RERM2012F KR EXBREEE R 2B
BFITRIN210% °

RAEMA2EABER - E2012F kKHEEXE
BRI E 2R ABRBEETHARER
TZHERER  BTETZ&EEBRNHE
UXABEXCBETRODZ1% AR o Ef#
—IROEBBUHREBRE  AFRER
KEEXEBRRAEG LHAETAEE - MakA
RAREBMEABHERS -

2012 K B E X BRI 8l 2 TEHIBKE
EXEZeRE  BATERRLBRES
BEFH10F 2 RAR - IR HEBRIER - K
ZEXVA(ERABBREZBLEITEL
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40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.XEMBATZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES

201443 A31H K2013E3A31H » &
AFTEMBATZ HEMT -

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

Place of Nominal value of capital/registered
incorporation/ issued capital held
establishment share/registered indirectly by the
Name of subsidiary and operation capital Company Principal activities
KARBERE
FMAL/ B BEfT/ BRIRE/
HWEAREE RiEEHY ERRAEE BRRAHELH FEEE
2014 2013
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$1 36.27% 43.52%  Property investment
Hong Kong LER1ET NERE
EBRAHE /B
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 36.27% 43.52%  Finance company
BHRERERAT Bk LRER1BT BERH]
Clever Wise Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$1 36.27% 43.52%  Property investment
BEERERAR Hong Kong ERRAET MERE
EBRAHE/BH
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% —  Property investment
REREERAR 0 £k 10,000 T NERE
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited Bermuda Ordinary HK$2,965,959  86.27%  43.52% Investment holding
KXEEEEEERAA BRE (2013: HK$4,119,415) REBR
L331% 2,965,959 7T
(20134 : 4,119,415
BIT)
Easyknit Properties Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
KENEEEERAT B £i#1 10,0007 NEER
Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 36.27% 43.52%  Trading of garments
BE LER2ET KKEE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 36.27% 43.52% Investment in securities
KEBERAH ) TRR2ET BHEE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
trEEARERAR BE LER2BT NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
REEXBRAR BE L@k BT NERE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.XEMBARZEHE®)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

Place of Nominal value of capital/registered
incorporation/ issued capital held
establishment share/registered indirectly by the
Name of subsidiary and operation capital Company Principal activities
RAAEERE
HMERYL/ B B/ BRAREK/
WEARER kg AMRAEE AMBARELS TEXE
2014 2013
Grow Well Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Singapore LER1ET MERE
EBRRBE/HIK
Hansford International Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EEARREBRAT Hong Kong LRR1ET WERE
ABRUBE/BE
Happy Light Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REREBRAR Hong Kong LER1ET NEERE
ERRABE /B
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RBEEXBRAA b ERR2ET NERE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 36.27% 43.52% Investment in securities
REZRERAR Hong Kong ERERAET EHRE
EBRABE/ B
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 36.27% 43.52%  Property investment
RECRARAH 36 LRR1ET NERE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
SRUBRERAT &% LER2ET and investment in
securities
NERERESFRE
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
ZERRARAH & L@k 10,0007 WERE
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Finance company
&E LaR2ET AR
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 36.27% 43.52%  Property investment
aRtEARAE &h LaR1ET NERE
Total Expect Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
Hong Kong TAR1ET NEERE
ERRABE/BE
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ey S EL RS )

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.xEMBLARZFE#®

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

Place of Nominal value of capital/registered
incorporation/ issued capital held
establishment share/registered indirectly by the
Name of subsidiary and operation capital Company
NG
HMARL/ B BB/ BRARE/
WEARER REBE B ERAHE MR AEE Ll
2014 2013
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%
IERBERAT B Lak1ET
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% -
EARERRAA 0 B0t 10,000 AT
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100%
BERERRAT BE (Non-voting deferred
HK$2Y)
LAk 9,998/E T
(ERFRELR
287m)*
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered 36.27% 43.52%
(“Enterprises Huzhou”)** US$25,544,206
XBREXF(AMNBRAR(HMEZR]D) i MR
25,544,206 % T
* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited *

carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid

up on the shares.

%

December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise *
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14

H o

BRIUE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report
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TE

Principal activities

IRER

Property development

ES

Property investment

ESE-

Property investment

ESIE

Property investment

VESIE

BEREBRAR ZERFEETEREER
BEMRRAGZEE  HEXIRKE L&
- BEAFEERENED KENRRE
BEEROEHRND 2SR -

HMNERR—BRP BN 2BNERE
% REHAR50F  BEE2054F12 414

A ESNKRAIIRZ ARAMEAR  BAR
AERECZER X2
AEBEEZEIRHED °
BRUEGHBARZHE  <HFE

FRAZEERBER
MEEZERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of

40. TEMB AR 215 #)

RBERK - ARAHAEMEAEENE
TRIBZMBRR - WEHBRAAIED
REELE HEMBRAIZIEXZHHE

these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: T
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
TEER TEEEMH MEARHE

2014 2013
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER B8 13 12
Inactive Hong Kong
FEA IR B 7 8
Inactive PRC
TR H 2 2

22 22

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2014 or 31 March 2013.

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests.

Proportion of ownership

mE B AR N2014E3 A31 520134
3 A 31 BETEMEBEES

TRAASE -FF2EMBARZFHE
HBEEAHERES -

Principal interests and voting Profit (loss) allocated to
place rights held by non- non-controlling Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary of business controlling interests interests controlling interests
FERERREZER FERES D
MEAE BB TELE M RBRE-EZLH BA (EE) REtEERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$’000
FET FAET FET FAET

Easyknit Enterprises Hong Kong
XEEE BB 63.783%  56.48%

4,099 (1,274) 715,748 450,562

KRB B LM AR A 2013/14 483k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M BEHRRMETE @

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.xEMEBLARZFHE @)

154

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Easyknit Enterprises is listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Group’s shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises decreased from
43.52% to 36.27% during the year ended 31 March 2014. The
directors of the Company have considered all relevant facts and
circumstances, including the Group’s dominant voting interest
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders, participation rates of shareholders and voting patterns
in previous shareholders’ meetings, related to the Group’s
interests in EE Group during the year ended 31 March 2014
and are of the opinion that the Group did not have control over
EE Group during the period from 24 September 2013 (the date
of new shares placement by Easyknit Enterprises of which the
Company was not a subscriber which resulted in dilution of the
Group’s shareholding in Easyknit Enterprises from 43.52% to
36.27%) to 27 March 2014 (the date of the Group’s subscription
of convertible note issued by Easyknit Enterprises which gave
potential voting rights and hence practical ability to the Group).

Summarised financial information in respect of Easyknit
Enterprises that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The amounts represent financial information
obtained from the published results announcement of Easyknit
Enterprises. Easyknit Enterprises is a subsidiary of the Group
during the periods from 1 April 2013 to 24 September 2013, and
from 27 March 2014 to 31 March 2014, and during the financial
year ended 31 March 2013.

KEBEERBRA L™ - RE 2201453 A
BALFE  AEERKEBEZFRER
43.52% 5 £36.27% ° 1N & £201443 A
BNALFE  ARREECEEZEEMBABSE
ERBER EREEASERKEEEZY
Pz ERER U EMmEEEEEAZR
BERESHEE  RBERERS EREH
BEREZERL MR ALEE B 2013F
9R 24 B CKEEERENB MO MARRLA
REFTERARAFRERL2%EEFEE
36.27% 2 BHI) E2014E3 A 27 B (A EE
REAKEEERT I TRBRERATASE

BEBELEEREREREN) BRTEXKEETE
ElZ# 1 o

MKREFBAEARFERER 2B BER]
EHHWMT - FESBIRKEEXEZET
BIEBLAMBIZHBKER XEEXE
B2013F4 818 201398248 ' §H
2014 3F27H £2014F3 A 31 H [ -
RAEE2013F3 31 HILFEANEE Y
Il =NE]

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 657,313 630,515
Current assets RBEE 732,189 373,464
Non-current liabilities FRBAEE (229,230) (174,802)
Current liabilities iER= (37,178) (31,298
Equity attributable to owners of Easyknit k&EE ZRREGEZ
Enterprises 1,123,094 797,879
Proportion of ownership interests held — kEEZIERESTEAER
by non-controlling interests of Easyknit 2 £ {7l
Enterprises 63.73% 56.48%
Equity interest of Easyknit Enterprises k& B IFE gz B
attributable to non-controlling interests k& B ¥ 2 AR
of Easyknit Enterprises 715,748 450,562

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3H31 HIFFE

40.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.xEMBLARZFE®

41.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Revenue R 156,940 223,756

Expenses and costs A KA (159,481) (219,061)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ~ KEEXWEELEREE

owners of Easyknit Enterprises (EE) &R (2,541) 4,695
Other comprehensive expense for the KERBEEIREDIEREE

year attributable to owners of Easyknit ~ Hi 2%

Enterprises (932) (13,705)
Total comprehensive expense for the KEBEIREDIEREE

year attributable to owners of Easyknit & HERI X %%

Enterprises (3,473) (9,010)
Net cash outflow from operating activities % 5 &< /&8 v B4 hHFaE (4,579) (24,636)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KB & EE 2 H LKL B (62,205) (267,049)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REREEH 2 & RAFHE 378,970 363,250
Net cash inflow RERAFE 312,186 71,565

2
EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 41.HEHRBER

REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
March 2014:

(@ On 30 April 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
Enterprises entered into a provisional agreement with an
independent third party to acquire an investment property
in Hong Kong for a consideration of HK$236,800,000. The
acquisition was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit
Enterprises in a special general meeting held on 18 June
2014.

2014 F3 A31 BREBREEU T ZEREH ¢

(a) M2014F 48308 KEBTEZE2E
BB A BB 5 =] —ERE R
&+ DA {8 236,800,000 7 7T U B iz 7
BBz —EREYE - ZWEEE 12014
F6A18HRTTZRAFIAZ LER
KEBERRAE

K BEEEAR AR 2013/14 4§t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ2014F3 731 HIFFE

41.EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

On 16 June 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a development agreement
with an independent third party (the “Party”) for joint
redevelopment of a building in Hong Kong of which the
Group is the registered owner of 9 out of 12 units and the
Party is the registered owner of the remaining 3 units. The
aggregate redevelopment cost is presently estimated to be
approximately HK$460 million. The Group and the Party
will bear the cost and share the economic interests in the
joint redevelopment on a 75:25 basis. Details of these are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16

41, REPREBEBE

(b)

R2014F6 416 8 * AA 72 & &
BArEBYE=F(EFA)FTLHE
Bz MAEEE—BURNESZE
FoAEEEZEF12@BMPHEAO
BEEMHNETEET MEFAABTS
EEMHEREE - REREERAML
=t #9/4 460,000,000/ 7T - AEBKE
= AR 75:25 2 th Bl AEER A R # o
EEERZEENZ - BEGIEERZ
HEHNAAAIBHA2014F6 A 16
B2 M e

June 2014.

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

42, AR 7 2 BBARR R

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIE R Az 1,403,057 1,512,192
Deposit and prepayments for a ABREZEER
life insurance policy SELNEN 22 9,805 9,709
1,412,862 1,521,901
Current assets MENVEE
Other receivables H b e U 518 413 510
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NS 1,939 8,298
2,352 8,808
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables AN 781 663
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG ESE] 188,554 31,834
189,335 32,497
Net current liabilities mEAEFE (186,983) (23,689)
Net assets BERE 1,225,879 1,498,212
Capital and reserves BN
Share capital PR 31 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) ) 1,217,937 1,490,270
Equity attributable to owners RATRE
of the Company FEfh#E &= 1,225,879 1,498,212

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZE201443 31 HILFE

42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42, XA B ZBiBMR R TR 2)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the Bt . ARAFIZHEBERFARBEFE 2 EBHM

prior years are as follows: T
Share Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
40 5 8 EAEE BARER Rt BF HmE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET FET TET TET
At 1 April 2012 M2012%4A1R 218,330 196,565 220,937 913,690 1,549,522
Loss and total AEEEBEBREHE
comprehensive A B
expense for the
year - - — (56,075) (56,075)
Dividends ¥ = - - (8,177) (3,177)
- - - (59,252) (59,252)
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 854,438 1,490,270
Loss and total AEEEER
comprehensive SEMASEE
expense for the
year — — - (240,565) (240,565)
Dividends [ids = = — (31,768) (31,768)
- - - (272,333) (272,333)
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 582,105 1,217,937

ARFEBEPBEEBARAR 2013/14 4#
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Financial Summary
M ERRE

RESULTS ¥
Year ended 31 March
HBZE3A3IBLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEr FEr FETL FET FET
Turnover e 35,289 39,986 203,583 524,398 275,757
Profit before taxation B % A1 V4 A 210,021 438,816 110,610 647,471 23,836
Taxation FiIA (22,663) (49,505) (2,934) (1,723) (6,701)
187,358 389,311 107,676 645,748 17,135
Profit (loss) for the year &1 N4 Z i 7
attributable to: (E18)
— owners of the — RAARRE
Company 187,358 389,311 101,181 647,022 13,036
— non-controlling — kR
interests — — 6,495 (1,274) 4,099
187,358 389,311 107,676 645,748 17,135
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R3AS31H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 1,744,172 2,162,765 2,922,403 4,057,287 5,283,049
Total liabilities EaE (128,890) (200,134) (493,544) (855,363)  (1,838,784)
Net assets BEFE 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924 3,444,265
Equity attributable AARRE
to owners of the FEERES
Company 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,260,743 2,751,362 2,728,517
Non-controlling
interests FEIE R - - 168,116 450,562 715,748
1,615,282 1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924 3,444,265

Easyknit International Holdings

Limited 2013/14 Annual Report




Summary of Properties
E L

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%#3/31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A RENZE

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose BLEE, Lease term
b3k A& EREE HOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)

1. 6th Floor, Nos. 650-652 Industrial 8,514 Medium
Castle Peak Road, and I% i H
No. 18A Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon
JUEE
BB
650 — 65257 ' 612K
KB 18ASK

2. 2nd Floor, Nos. 790, 792 and 794 Industrial 2,997 Medium
Cheung Sha Wan Road, I# 1
Kowloon

Be
R EE
79097 « 79255 K 794 57212

3. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial 6,992 Medium
on 7th Floor, T aep =i
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDESILE4815%
TEZBIER
BEHH

4, Unit B on First Floor, Industrial 1,937 Medium
Fung Wah Factory Building, I% R ER
Nos. 646, 648, 648A
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
NEEF LB 646 5% ~ 6485 K
B4BATREET XAE—ETI5B

58 Roof, No. 20 Wing Hong Street, Industrial 2,657 Medium

Kowloon T% A
NEKEEF20RKA
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Summary of Properties (continued)
VB E )

As at 31 March 2014
201473531 A

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. REWNZE =)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose BLEm,/ Lease term
i A& ERAE®E HAEH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)

6. Fifth Floor, Industrial 2,637 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street, I¥ HH
Kowloon

JEEKEA 20 AE

7. Easy Tower Industrial/ 74,458 Medium
No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, commercial Fh HA
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon T¥ /B
NERDE
A EI P 609 5%

K& ES

8. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial 13,544 Medium
together with showcase on EES HH
Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon

NEERE A

TEEIHT 1957

ERESZH T2 3FHERMT
HWE - —BR-2

9. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial 900 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong [HES =4
ESARE
BE 50551 T

10. House 9, Villa Castell, Residential 2,358 Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane, FE= i H
Tai Po, New Territories
MAANBERE205TR LT IORHE
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEME @)

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%#3/31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

11.

12.

13.

14.

18

Location
ik

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor,
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor,
Shatin Heights,

No. 8003 Tai Po Road,

Shatin, New Territories

R EAE R 8003 57
YHAEEDELE A RM2RE R
REH TEfL

2 46 5%

Third Floor,

No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road,
Hong Kong
BERRRE1615R=12

15 Ardmore Park #04-03,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
%7 % 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
#1013 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
¥ I3K% 259959

Purpose

R#

Residential
(=2

Residential
=

Residential
F=

Residential
=

Residential
=

A. REWHE#)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
B#gmE,/
EAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

2,086

781

2,885

2,885

2,885

Lease term
HAOFH

Medium

R

Medium

A

Freehold
=M

Freehold
il

Freehold
Cyicl

K BEEEAR AR 2013/14 4§t
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Summary of Properties (continued)
VB E )

As at 31 March 2014
201473531 A

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. REWNZE =)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose BLEm Lease term
bib JiikzS ERE® HAEH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)

16. Shops A and B on Ground Floor Commercial 5,181 Medium
and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory, (SES AR ER
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
NEEMXHEBEFE1  1ARR3R
BEAE1 S TARBER —1ECH

17. Blocks A, B and D on Ground Floor, Residential 8,736 Long
Blocks A, B and D on First Floor, F=E R
Blocks A, B and D on Second Floor,

Nos. 301, 301A — C Prince Edward
Road West, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

BRI HAFEF3015% « 301A — C5
#RABNMDEE
—1#2A -BKDE
“#A -BKDE

18. Ground Floor, Commercial 580 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road, [HE S A
Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFHLTIE 1485 T

19. Ground Floor and Cockloft, Commercial 1,232 Long
No. 13 Matheson Street, EHES RH
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BRMBEE N E A 135 T RERZ

20. 1st — 5th Floors, Commercial/residential 3,765 Long
No. 15 Matheson Street, mE/Ix R
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEWBENMRA 15551 — 548
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEME @)

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%#3/31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location
ik

21. Ground Floor, No. 6 Cannon Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
ERMBEREG 6T

22. Two parcels of land at an
industrial site located at the
South of Hengtang Harbour,
the West of Dongliang Road,
Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China

with a total of seven building blocks

being built and five building
blocks under construction
MR E R TE R 2 T 1A R

RPEARKAMBEANIA AN T RER

HERRR AT

BIEBIAE
BEtERE TR BEZZEN R
AR A AR 2 EEY)

A. REWHE#)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area

Purpose WMAEmE, Lease term
ke BEAEE HAEH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)
Commercial 472 Long
[EES R
Industrial 1,805,534 Medium
Ix H Hj

K BEEEAR AR 2013/14 4§t
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Summary of Properties (continued)

No. 14 Inverness Road;
Basement, Ground Floor,

First Floor and Second Floor
and the Roof,

No. 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BRNENERTELE 145
WE T —BRZE

EXELE 165
WE-T > —BRZE
VY &N

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report

VB E )
As at 31 March 2014
201438318
B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. Z¥{EHEREWHE
FOR SALE
Approximate
gross site  Percentage Stage of
Location Purpose area of interest Lease term completion
it A% B4 B AR BEASL HRFEH ZTHER
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
Nos. 311A-D, Residential 17,396 100% Long Under development
Nos. 313 & 313A-C e B ERT
Prince Edward Road West,
Ho Man Tin
Kowloon
NEERXBEAFER
311A — D%« 3135
R&313A — C%
Basement, Ground Floor, Residential 8,442 100% Medium Held for development
First Floor and Second Floor, FE RE BERER




www.easyknit.com

EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Vi B &£ B F R A H
(Stock Code M # fR55%: 1218)



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Summary of Properties
	Back Cover


